






































































































































































SGCO & Co.LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of IKF Finance Lirrn'.ed 

Report on the audit of Consolidated financial statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS fina;1cial statements of IKF Finance Limited 
(hereinafter referred to as " the Holding Company" ) and its subsidiary (the Holding Company and its 
subsidiary together referred to as " the Group" ), which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at 
March 31, 2022, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive Income, 
the consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year 
then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as " the consolidated 
financial statements" ) 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based 
on the consideration of report of other auditor on separate financial statements of such subsidiary, the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, 
as amended (" the Act" ) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting pr;nciples generally accepted in India, of the· consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 
March 31 , 202?., its consolidated profit including other comprehensive income, their consolidated cash 
flows and the co;1scl:dated statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our 2udit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing (SA), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards 
are further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated financial 
statements' sec!ion of our report. We are independent uf the Group in accordance with the 'Code of 
Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants. of 1riaia ("ICAI"} together with the ethical 
requ;,ements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions 
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
along with consideration of audit report of other auditor referred to in the "other matters" paragraph below 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements. 

Emphasis of matter 
We dra1.•, :1t!er,fi:;1~ to Note 62 to the consolidated financial st3tement in which the Group describes the 
cont:nuin~ 1,r.c2dai;1ties arising from the COVID 19 pandemic. Our report is not modified in respect of 
this mailer. 
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Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our 
audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming 
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, 
our description how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context. 

Key audit Matters . How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Impairment of Financial Instruments (expected credit Losses) has been described in Note 2.4.c, 2.6.f and 
6 of the financial statements. 

Management estimates impairment provision using 
Expected Credit loss model for the loan exposure as 
per the Board approved policy which is in line with Ind 
AS and the Regulations. Measurement of loan 
impairment involves application of significant 
judgement by the management. The most significant 
judgements are: 

• Timely identification and classification of the 
impaired loans, including classification of 
assets to stage 1, 2, or 3 using criteria in 
accordance with Ind AS 109 which also 
include considering the impact of RBl's 
regulatory circulars, 

• The segmentation of financial assets when 
their ECL is assessed on a collective basis, 

• Determination of probability of defaults (PD) 
and loss given defaults (LGD) based on the 
default history of loans, subsequent 
recoveries made and other relevant factors 
and 

• Assessment of qualitative factors having an 
impact on the credit risk. 

• We evaluated the design and operating 
effectiveness of controls across the processes 
relevant to ECL, including the judgements and 
estimates. 

• We tested the completeness of loans and 
advances included in the Expected Credit Loss 
calculations as of March 31, 2022 by reconciling 
it with the balances as per loan balance register 
and loan commitment report as on that date. 

• We tested assets in stage 1, 2 and 3 on sample 
basis to verify that they were allocated to the 
appropriate stage. 

• Tested samples to ascertain the completeness 
and accuracy of the input data used for 
determining the PD and LGD rates and agreed 
the data with underlying books of accounts and 
records. 

• For samples of exposure, we tested the 
appropriateness of determining EAD, PD and 
LGD. 

• For exposure determined to . be individually 
impaired, we tested samples of loans and 
advances and examined management's 
estimate of future cash flows, assessed their 
reasonableness and checked the resultant 
provision calculations. 

• We performed an overall assessment of the 
ECL provision levels at each stage including 
management's assessment and provision on 
account of Company's portfolio, risk profile, 
credit risk mana ement ractices. 
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I 
• We assessed the adequacy and 

appropriateness of disclosures in compliance· 
with the Ind AS 107 in relation to ECL especially 
in relation to judgements used in estimation of 
ECL provision. 

The Holding Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Holding Company's Annual Report, but does not include the consolidated 
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The other information is expected to be made available to us 
after the date of this auditors' report. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the 
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the consolidated 
financial statements 

The Holding Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation 
of these consolidated financial statements, that give a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, 
consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows 
of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian 
Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective management and Board of 
Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and 
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the 
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as 
aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective management and Board of Directors of the 
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each company to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless the managemqnt either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

The respective management and Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for 
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated financial statements 
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statement as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes 
our-opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is·not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statement. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statement, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing 
our opinion through a separate report on the complete set of financial statements on whether the company 
has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures in the consolidated financial statement made by the Management and Board of 
Directors. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related 
disclosures in the consolidated financial statement or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statement ,including the 
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statement represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial statement of the entities within the Group 
to express an opinion on the consolidated annual financial results. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the audit of financial statement of such entity included in the consolidated 
financial statement of which we are the independent auditor. For the other entities included in the consolidated 
financial statement, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for 
the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible 
·for our audit opinion. · 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated 
financial statements may be influenced. 

We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in 
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated 
financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficien · ,,;_·~ = , 
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internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those. charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's.report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Other Matter 

The consolidated financial statement of the Group for the year ended March 31 , 2021 were audited by the 
predecessor auditor. The predecessor auditor had expressed an unmodified opinion vide their report dated July 
21, 2021. 

The consolidated financial statement include the audited financial statement of one subsidiary, whose financial 
statement reflect Group's share of total assets (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 41,257.43 lakhs as at 31 
March 2022, Group's share of total revenue (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 5,114.89 lakhs, Group's 
share of total net profit after tax (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 1,000.43 lakhs and Group's share of net 
cash inflows (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs 3,605.96 lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered 
in the consolidated financial statement, which -have been audited by their other independent auditor. The 
independent auditor's reports on financial statement of the subsidiary have been furnished to us by the 
management. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statement, in so far as it relates to the amounts and 
disclosures included in respect of this entity, is based solely on the reports of such auditor and the procedures 
performed by us as stated in paragraph above. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statement is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to 
our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditor. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the 
other auditor on separate financial statements and the other financial information of the subsidiary as 
noted in the 'other matter ' paragraph we report , to the extent applicable, that : 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements; 

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid 
consolidation of financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those 
books and reports of the other auditor; · 

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement 
of Other Comprehensive Income, ihe Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated Statement 
of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for 
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements; 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Sta 
Rules, 2015, as amended; 
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(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on 
March 31 , 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the report of the 
statutory auditor who is appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary company, none ofthe 
directors of the Group's companies, incorporated in India, is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

(D With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company 
with reference to these consolidated financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A"; 

(g) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us and based on reports of 
the statutory auditor of such subsidiary company incorporated in India which were not audited by us, the 
remuneration paid during the current year by the Holding Company and its subsidiary incorporated in 
India to its directors in accordance with the provisions of and the limits laid down under section 197 read 
with Schedule V of the Act; 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor 's Report in accordance with Rule 11 
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report 
of the other auditor on separate financial statements as also the other financial information of the 
subsidiary as noted in the 'Other matter' paragraph: 

i. The Group does not have any pending litigations which would 1mpact its consolidated financial position; 

ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts during the year ended March 31 , 2022; 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary, incorporated in India during the year ended March 31, 
2022. 

iv. (a) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiary which are companies incorporated 
in India, have represented to us that to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in Note no. 
54, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned 
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 
Holding Company or any such subsidiary company, to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise , that 
the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of th~ Holding Company or any such subsidiary company ("Ultima,te 
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(b) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiary which are companies 
incorporated in India, have represented to us to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in 
Note no. 54, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by 
the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any such 
subsidiary company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 
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(c) Based on reasonable audit procedures adopted by us and those performed by the auditors of the 
subsidiaries, incorporated in India, nothing has come to our notice or other auditors notice that has 
caused us to believe that the representation under sub clause (i) and (ii) of the Rule 11 (e), as provided 
under (a) and (b) above, contains any material misstatement. 

v. The Holding Company and the subsidiary has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and 
has not proposed final dividend for the year. 

2. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor's Report) 
Order, 2020 (the "Order"/ "CARO") issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the 
Act, to be included in the Auditor's report, according to the information and explanations given to us, and 
based on the CARO reports issued by us for the Company and based on our consideration of CARO 
reports issued by the respective auditors of the company's such subsidiary as referred to in Other Matter 
paragraph above, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO reports. 

For SGCO & CO. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reg. No.:- 112081 W/W100184 

Suresh& 
Partner 
Membership No. :- 044739 
UDIN :- 22044739AJYAXW7961 
Place :- Mumbai 
Date :- 30-05-2022 
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ANNEXURE A REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 2(f) UNDER THE HEADING "REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL 
AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS" OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 ("the Act"} 

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of IKF Finance Limited (hereinafter referred 
to as the" Holding Company"} as of and for the year ended March 31, 2022, we have audited the internal financial 
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary (the Holding 
Company and its subsidiary together referred to as " the Group" ) ,which are companies incorporated in India, as 
of that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group, which are companies incorporated in 
India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI}. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company's polici_es, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls with reference to 
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the " Guidance Note" } and the Standards 
on Auditing, specified under section 143(10} of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls, both, issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such 
controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material. 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on 
~he assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
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We believe th_at the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditor, in terms 
of his report referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to Consolidated 
financial statements 

A Company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process designed 
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the rel iability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's 
internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements includes those policies and procedures 
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could 
have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Fjnancial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to 
these Consolidated financial statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to these consolidated financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to the 
risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial 
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Group, which are companies incorporated in India, have, maintained in all material respects, 
adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial 
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based 
on the intema! control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI. 
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Other Matters 

Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial 
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company, in so far as it relates to one 
subsidiary, which is incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding report of the auditor of such subsidiary. 

For SGCO & CO. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm's R~~ 081W/W10018A 

Suresh Murarka 
Partner 
Membership No. :- 044739 
UDIN :-22044739AJYAXW7961 
Place :- Mumbai 
Date :- 30th May,2022 



IKF Finance Limited 
Consol idated Balance Sheet as at March 31; 2022 
(Currency : INR in lakhs) 

Particulars 

ASSETS 
(1) Financial assets 

(a) Cash and cash equivalents 
(b) Bank Balance other than included in (a) above 
(c) Receivables 

(I) Trade receivables 

(d) Loans 
(e) Investments 
(f) Other financial assets 

(2) Non.financial assets 

(a) Current Tax Assets (Net) 
(b) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 
(c) Investment Property 

(d) Property, Plant and Equipment 
(e) Right of use asset 
(f) Intangible assets 
(g) Goodwill 

(h) Other non-financial assets 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

LIABILITIES 
(1) Financial liabilities 

(a) Derivative financial instruments 
(b) Payables 

{i)Trade payables and other payables 

{i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 
small enterprises 

(II) total outstanding dues of creditors other than 

micro enterprises and small enterprises 
(c) Debt securities 
(d) Borrowings (other than debt securities) 
(e) Subordinated liabilities 
(f) Other financial liabilities 

(2) Non-financial liabilities 
(a) Current tax liabilities (Net) 
(b) Provisions 
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 

(d) Other non-financial liabilities 

EQUITY 
(a) Equity share capital 
(b) Other equity 

(cl Non- Controlling Interest 

Total liabilities and equity 

Significant acc.ounting policie.s and key ac.counting estimates and jude,ments 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

Fors G CO & Co. UP 

Pon.ner 

Membership No.044739 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 30-May-22 

Note 

No 

3 
4 

5 
6 
8 
7 

29 
11 
10 
10 
12 

9 

13 
14 

15 
16 

17 

29 
18 

19 
20 

As at Asal 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

9,664.31 14,474.42 

2,533.65 4,164.82 

28.35 15.88 
1,89,210.12 1,58,784.68 

3,193.40 2,017.53 

2,04,629.83 1,79,457.33 

200.95 217.94 
70.34 

114.31 6.47 

343.00 319.40 

19.67 45.71 
175.97 207.32 
774.47 774.47 

1,080.22 401.70 
2,778.93 1,973.01 

2,07,408.76 1,81,430.34 

58.68 

7.09 23.52 

23,807.91 43,210.76 
1,32,139.07 92,148.69 

6,003.45 5,986.79 
3,103.00 3,583.67 

1,65,119.20 l,44,9S3.43 

71.90 
345.34 303.22 

165.35 116.67 
157.27 148.76 
667.96 640.55 

5,265.91 5,167.49 
35,780.90 30,169.33 

574.79 499.54 

41,621.60 35,836.36 

2,07,408.76 1,81,430.34 

For f the Board of Directors of 

I 

Chairman 

DIN: 01817992 

Place: Vijayawada 

Date: 30-May-22 

Vasumathi Oevi Koganti 

Como y Secretary 
M.No. ACS14723 



IKF Finance Limited 
Consolidated State ment of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022 

(Currency: INR in lakhs) 

Particulars 

Revenue From operations 

(i) Interest income 
(ii) Fees and commission income 

(I) Total revenue from operations 

(II) Other income 
(Ill) Total income (I+ II) 

Expenses 
(i) Finance costs 
(ii) Net loss on fair value changes 
(iii) Impairment on financial instruments 
(iv) Employee benefits expenses 
(v) Depreciation, amortization and impairment 
(vi) Others expenses 
(IV) Total expenses 

(V) Profit before tax (Ill - IV) 
(VI) Tax Expense: 

(1) Current Tax 
'(2) Deferred Tax 
'(3) Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods 

(VII) Profit for the period (V-VI) 

(VIII) Other comprehensive income 
(A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (specify items and amounts) 

(a) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) 

(IX) Total comprehensive income fo r the period (VII+ VIII) 

Attributable to: 
Owners of the Company 
Non-controlling interest 

(X) Earnings per share (equity share, par value of Rs.10 each) 
Basic 
Diluted 

S1gn1ficant accounting policies and key accounting estimates and judgments 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

For S G CO & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm registration number: 112081W/ W100184 

''"""~ 
Partner 
Membership No.044739 

Date: 30-May-22 
Place: Mumbai 

Note 
No 

21 
22 

23 

24.1 
24.2 

25 
26 
27 
28 

29 
29 
29 

30 

31 
31 

2 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

26,301.60 23,422.50 
660.15 329.07 

26,961.75 23,751.57 

207.95 57.33 
27,169.70 23,808.90 

13,617.93 12,865.82 
3.35 

513.01 781.57 
4,650.46 3,438.10 

190.23 193.18 
1,356.29 1,219.14 

20,331.27 18,497.81 

6,838.43 5,311.09 

1,740.28 1,044.15 
(24.92) 411.32 
10.06 65.46 

1,725.42 1,520.93 
5,113.01 3,790.16 

12.80 16.20 
(3.22) (4 .08) 
9.58 12.12 

5,122.59 3,802.28 

5,047.32 3,725.04 
75.24 77.24 

9.89 7.54 
9.89 7.53 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

IKF Finance imited 

P1991PLC012736 

Chairman 

DIN: 01817992 

Chief Financial Officer 

Place: Vijayawada 

Date: 30-May-22 

Vasumathi Devi Koganti 

Managing Director 

DIN: 03161, 

U,,t 
Ch eenivasa Rao 

Co pany Secretary 

M.No. ACS14723 



IKF Finance Limited 
Co nsolidated Cash Flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2022 

0 

Particulars For the Year ended 
March 31, 2022 

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Profit before tax 6,838.43 

Adjustments for: 

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 190.23 
Interest Income (26,301.60) 
Interest expenses 13,617.93 
Impairment on financial inst rument 513.01 
Net loss on fair value changes 3.35 
Lease equalisation 

Share based payment expense (6.03) 
Net gain/(loss) on financial instrument at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPLJ 

Net gain/(loss) on financial instrument at amortised categiry 

Provision for expenses 6.60 
Employee benefit expenses 94.59 
Rental income on Investment property (7.63) 
{Profit)/ Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (0.07) 
(Profit)/ Loss on sale of immovable Property 6.10 

Cash generated from/ (used in) operations before working capital changes and adjustments (5,045.09) 
for interest received and interest paid 

Adjustments for changes In Working Capital : 

Decrease/ {Increase) in trade receivable (12.47) 
Decrease/ (Increase) in loans (38,117.26) 
Decrease/ (Increase) in bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1,631.18 
Decrease/ (Increase) in other fin;rncial assets (5,403.68) 
Decrease/ (Increase) in other non-financial assets (678.52) 
(Decrease)/ Increase in trade payables (16.43) 
(Decrease)/ Increase in other financial liabilities (458.46) 
(Decrease)/ Increase in provisions (30.08) 
(Decrease)/ Increase in other non-financial liabilities 8.51 

Interest received 31,293.07 
Interest paid (13,450.44) 

(30,279.68) 

Income tax paid {net of refunds) (1,805.25) 
Derivative financial instruments 

NET CASH GENERATED FROM/ (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES (32,084.93) 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (114.86) 
Purchase of Investment property (224.11) 
Rental income on Investment property 7.63 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 0.08 
Proceeds from sale of Investment property 110.00 
Purchase of intangible assets (37.27) 
ROUAdj 

Purchase of investments measured at cost 

NET CASH GENERATED FROM/ (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (258.54) 
CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Proceeds from issue of equity shares (including securities premium) 714.39 
Amount received from debt securities 8,000.00 
Repayment of debt securities (26,783.33) 
Amount received from borrowings other than debt securities 77,180.00 
Repayment of borrowings other than debt securities (31,541.19) 
Amount received from subordinated Liabilities 

Repayment of subordinated debt 

Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities (31.05) 
Payment of interest on lease liabilities (3.79) 
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/ (USED IN) FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 27,535.03 

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (4,808.44) 

Cash ;md Cash Equivalents at the beginning of Year 14,474.42 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the Year 9,664.31 
The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect method' as set out in Ind AS 7 on 'Statement of Cash Flows'. 

As per our report of even date 

For 5 G CO & Co. LLP 

per Sures 
Partner 

Membership No.04 

Date: 30-May-22 
Place: Mumbai Chief Financial Officer 

For the Year ended 

March 31, 2021 

5,311.09 

193.18 
(23,422.49) 
12,865.83 

781.57 

13.09 

4.83 
106.26 

(6.36) 
(0.14) 

(4,153.14) 

4.99 
(28,317.25) 

(389.89) 
(292.59) 

(77.57) 
5.67 

(125.82) 
(17.77) 

(0.60) 

20,192.84 
(10,940.08) 
(24,111.21) 

(1.137. 77) 

(25,248.98) 

(45.96) 

6.36 
0.54 

(47.95) 

(87.01) 

1.015.18 

39,500.00 
(3,300.00) 

38,025.08 

(38,101.19) 

2,500.00 
(3,000.00) 

(51.94) 
(6.35) 

36,580.78 

11,244.79 

3,229.63 
14,474.42 



IKF Finance limited 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2022 
(Currency: INR in lakhs) 

A. Equity share caplul 

Current Reporting Period 

Balance at the beclnnlnc of the 
Putiailars current reporting period 

As a t March 31. 2021 

luued, Subscribed and paid up • fully paid 4,7~7.94 

(Equity shares of Rs.10 each, Fulfy paid-up) 

Issued, Subscribed and paid up-partly paid 419.SS 

(Equity shares of Rs.JO uch, partly pald--up of 8.10 per 
share in March 2021 

Previous Reportlnc Period 

Balanca a t tha beginning of th• 

Putlculan current reporting prrtod 
As at March 31, 2020 

Issued, Subscribed and paid up • fully paid 4,747.94 

(Equity shares of Rs.10 eac.h, Fully paid-up) 

Issued, Subscri~ and paid up • partly paid 279.70 
(Equity sharu of Rs.10 each, partly paid-up of 8.10 per 
share In March 2021 

9. Other equity 

Chanie.s in Equity Ruuted balance 
Share Capital due at the be1lnnlng 

to prior period of the current 

errors reportin& period 

4,747.94 

419.SS 

Changes in Equity Restated balance 
Share Capital due at the be1innln1 

to prior period of the current 
errors reporting period 

4,747.94 

279.70 

Reserves and Surplus 

Partkulars 

Bah1nce at March 31, 2020 

Profit for the year 

Other comprehensive income for the yeu 

Pnor Penod items 

Total comprehensive income for the year (net of ux} 

Transfer to Statutory Reserve 

Transfer to General Reserve 

Issue of equity shares 

Share based payment expense 

Balance at March 31, 2021 

Profit for the year 

Other comprehensive income for the year 

Pnor Period hems 

Total comprehensive Income for the year (net of tax) 

TBnsfer to Statutory Reserv1 

Transfer to General Reserve 

Transfer to Hedge Reserve 

Issue of equity share, 

Share based payment upense 

Balance at March 31, 2022 

As per our report of even date 

ForSGCO&Co. LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Partner 

Member1hip No.044739 

Place: Mumbai 

OJte: 30-May-22 

Statutory 
Capita l Reserve 

Securities 
Reurve Premium 

3,713.89 32.50 9,085.06 

971.97 

875.33 

4,685.86 32.SO 9,960.39 

1,0S6.19 

615.97 

5,742.05 32.50 10,576.36 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Chairman 

DIN; 01817992 

Place: Vijayawada 

Date: 30-May-22 

Managln1 Director 

DIN: 031611S0 

General Reserve 

860.41 

159.53 

1,019.94 

201.52 

1,221.46 

Chances In Balance at the beglnnln& of the 
equity share 

current reporting period 
capital during As at March 31, 2022 

the current yHr 

517.97 5,265.91 

(41955) 

Changes In Balance at th• beginnln1 of the 
equity share 

cur,ent reporting period 
capital during As at March 31, 2021 

the current year 

4,747.94 

139.85 419.SS 

Share based Total 
Retained 

payment 
Earnings 

Reserve 
17.56 11,845.59 25,555.01 

3,712.93 3,712.93 

12.12 12.12 

0.85 

l,7ZS.89 3,725.89 

(971.97) 
(159.53) 

875.33 

13.09 13.09 

30.65 14,440.00 30,169.33 

5,037.79 5,037.79 

9.58 9.58 

9.59 9.59 

5,056.96 S,056.96 

(1,056.19) 

(201.52) 
(55.33) (55.33) 

615.97 

16.03) (6.03) 

24.62 18,183.90 35,780.90 



IKF Finance Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 
(All amount in fts. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

1 Group Information 

IKF Finance Limited ('the Company' or 't he Holding Company' ) is a publ ic company domiciled in India and 
incorporated under t he provision of the Companies Act, 1956. The Company was registered as a non­
deposit accepting Non-Banking Financial Company ('NBFC-N D') with the Reserve Bank of India ('RBI') and 
classified as a Non-Banking Financial Company- Asset Finance Company ('NBFC-AFC') with effect from May 
12, 2014.The Company provides finance for commercial vehicles, construction equipment and other loans. 

The consolidated financial statements relates to the Company and its subsidiary company IKF Home Finance 
Limited (IIKFHF) ("together hereinafter referred to as "Group"). 

1.1 Basis of Consolidation 

i. The financia l statements of the subsidiary company used in the consolidation are drawn up to the same 
reporting date as of the Company i.e. year ended March 31, 2022 and are prepared based on t he accounting 
policies consistent with those used by the Company. 

ii. Notes· to t hese consolidated financial statements are intended to serve as a means of informat ive 
disclosure and a guide to better understanding of the consolidated position of t he companies. Recognising 
this purpose, t he Company has disclosed only such notes from the individual financial statements, which 
fairly present the needed disclosures. The ,accounting policies, not es and disclosures made by the parent are 
best viewed in its standalone financial statements. 

The consolidated financial statement s have been prepared on the following basis: 
a. The financial st atements of the Company and its subsidiary company has been combined on a line-by-line 
basis by adding together like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The intra-group balances and 
intra-group transactions have been fully eliminated except where losses are realized. 

b. The excess of cost to the Company of its investments in the subsidiary company over its share of equity 
of the subsidiary company, at the dates on which the investments in the subsidiary company is made, is 
recognized as 'Goodwill' being an asset in the consolidated financial statements. Alternatively, where the 
share of equ ity in the subsidiary company as on the date of investment is in excess of cost of investment of 
the Company, it is recognized as 'Capital Reserve' and shown under the head 'Reserves and Surplus', in t he 
consolidated financial stat ements. 

c. Minority interest in the net assets of the consolidated subsidiaries consist of the amount of equity 
attributable to the minority shareholders at t he date on which investments in the subsidiary companies were 
made and further movements in their share in the equity, subsequent to the dates of investments. Net profit 
/ loss for the year of the subsidiaries attribut able to minority interest is identified and adjusted against the 
profit after tax of t he Group to arrive at the income attributable to shareholders of the Company. 

d. Goodwill arising on consolidation is not amortized but t ested for impairment. 

Subsidiary Considered in preparation of these consolidated financial statements are as under: 

Name of the subsidiary Country of in corporation Proportion of ownership 

IKF Home Finance Limited India 92.49% 



IKF Finance Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 
(All amount in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherw ise stated) 

2 Significant Accounting Policies 

2.1 Basis of preparation 

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 have been prepared by the Group in accordance 
with Indian Account ing Standards ("Ind AS") notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of 
India under t he Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016, as amended from time to time, in this regard. Any application 
guidance/ clarifications/ directions issued by RBI or other regulators are implemented as and when they are 
issued/ appl icable. 

2.2 Presentation of Financial Statements 

The financial statements are presented as per Division Ill of the Schedule Ill to the Companies Act 2013 as 

amended from time to time, for Non-Banking Financial Companies ('NBFCs') that are required t o comply 

w ith Ind-AS. The Statement of Cash Flows has been presented as per the requirements of Ind-AS 7 

Statement of Cash Flows. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months after the reporting 

date (current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date (non-current) is presented in Note 34 -
Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in t he balance sheet. They are only offset 

and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the 

recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net 
basis in all of the following circumstances: 

• The normal course of business 

• The event of default 

• The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group and/or its counterparties 

2.3 Basis of Measurement 

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis 

except fo r certain financial instruments, plan assets of defined benefit plans and share based payment 

plans, which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period as explained in the accounting 

policies below. All amounts disclosed in the financial st atements and notes have been rounded off to the 
nearest INR Lakhs in compliance with Schedule Ill of the Act, unless otherwise stated. 

2.4 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make 

judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including 

contingent liabil ities) at the date of the financial statements and t he reported amounts of revenues and 

expenses for the reporting period. The estimates and assumptions used in the accompanying financial 

statements are based upon management's evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as of the date 

of financia l statements. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Any revisions to accounting 

estimates are recognized prospectively in the current and future periods. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Key sources of estimation of 

uncertainty at the date of financial statements, which may cause a material adjustment to the carrying 

amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are included in the following notes: 



IKF Finance Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 
(All amount in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

a. Business model assessment 

Classification and measurement offinancial assets depends on the results of the solely payments of principal 

and interest (SPPI) and the business model test. The Group determines the business model at a level that 
reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particu Jar business objective. This 

assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets 

is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect t he performance of the assets and how 

these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated. Monitoring is part of the Group's 
continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held 
continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business model 

and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets. 

b. Effective Interest Rat e (EIR) method 

The Group recognizes interest income/ expense using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of 

a constant rate of return over the expected life of the loans given/ taken . 

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and 
lifecycle of the instruments, as well as expected changes to other fee income/expense that are integral 

parts of the instrument. 

c. Impairment of loans portfolio 

The measurement of impairment losses on loan assets requires judgement, in estimating the amount and 

timing of future cash flows and recoverability of collateral values while determining the impairment losses 

and assessing a significant increase in credit risk. 

The Group's Expected Credit Loss (ECL) calculation is the output of a complex model with a number of 

underlying assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of 

the ECL model that are considered accounting judgements and estimates include: 

• PD calculation includes historical data, benchmarking, assumptions and expectations of future 

conditions. 

• The Group's criteria fo r assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so allowances 

for financial assets should be measured on a life-time expected credit loss and the qualitative 

assessment. 

• The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis 

• Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs 

It is the Group's policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience and adjust 

when necessary. 

The impairment loss on loans and advances is disclosed in more detail in Note 6-Loans and Note 41- Risk 

Management. 



IKF Finance Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 
(All amount in Rs. Lakhs, un less otherwise stated) 

d. Defined employee benefit assets and liabilities 

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present va lue of the gratuity obligation are determined 

using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from 

actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary 

increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a 

defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumpt ions are reviewed 

at each reporting date. 

e. Fair value measurement: 

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be 

measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using various valuation 

techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable market s where possible, but where this 

is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations 

of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could 

affect the reported fair va lue of financial instruments. 

f. Operating Leases 

Group as a lessee: 

The Group has applied Ind AS 116 using the partial retrospective approach. 

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract 
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of t ime in exchange for consideration. 

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term 

leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make iease payments and 

right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets. 

Right to use assets 

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the 
underlying asset is available for use}. Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated 

depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilit ies. The cost of 
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease 

payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use 

assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful 
lives of the assets. 

Lease Liabilities 

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present 

value of lease payments to be made over t he lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments 

(including in substance fixed payments} less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that 

depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. In 

calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease 

commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the 

commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accret ion of interest and 

reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if 

there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future 

payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments} or a change 

in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. 

Short term lease 



IKF Finance Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 

(All amount in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

The Group has elected not to recognise right of use asset and lease liabilities for short term leases of 

property t hat has lease term of 12 months or less. The Group recognises lease payment associated with 

these leases as an expense on a straight line basis over lease term. 

g. Share based payments 

Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate 

valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires 

determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share 

option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. 

2.5 Revenue recognition 

a. Interest Income on loans 

Interest income is recorded using effective interest rate (EIR) method for all financial assets measured at 
amortised cost and at fair value through other comprehensive (FVOCI) income. 

EIR is the rate that exact ly discounts the est imated future cash flows through the expected life of the financial 

instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset except 

for credit impaired asset. 

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes t ransaction costs and fees (loan processing fees, 

commission paid to direct selling agents and other premiums or discounts) that are an integral part of the 

contract. Transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisit ion of 

financial asset. 

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired, the Group calculates interest income by applying the 

effective interest rate to t he net amortised cost of the financial asset . If the financial asset cures and is no 

longer credit-
impaired, the Group reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis. 

b. Rental Income 

Rental income arising from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term. In cases 

where the increase is in line with expected general inflat ion rental income is recognised as per the contractual 

terms. 

Operating leases are leases where the Group does not transfer substantially all of the risk and benefits of 

ownership of the asset. 

c. Interest income on fixed deposits 

Interest on fixed deposits is recognised on a t ime proportion basis taking into account the amount 

outstanding and t he applicable rate. 

d. Other income 

Other charges including application fees (penal interest, cheque bouncing charges, etc.) are recognised on 

realization basis. 



IKF Finance Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 

(All amount in Rs. Lakhs, un less otherwise st at ed) 

2.6 Financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabil ities are recognised in the Group's balance sheet when the Group 

becomes a party t o the contractual provisions of t he instrument. 

Recognised financial assets and financial liabilities are init ially measured at transaction price, which equates 

fair value. Transact ion costs t hat are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and 

financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted 

from the fair value of the financia l assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. 

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL 
are recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and presented on net basis in the balance sheet when 

there is a current legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and it is intended to either 
settle on net basis or to real ise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

a. Classification and measurement of Financial asset s 

Based on the business model, the contractual characteristics of the financial assets and specific elections 
where appropriate, the Group classifies and measures financia l assets in the following categories: 
- Amortised cost 

- Fair value through other comprehensive income ('FVOCI') 

- Fair value through profit and loss ('FVTPL') 

Financial assets at amortised cost 

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate {EIR) if these financial assets 

are held within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash 

flows and the contractual t erms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement and based on the assessment of the business model as asset held to collect 

contractual cash flows and SPPI, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using 

effective interest rate ('EIR') method. Interest income and impairment expenses are recognised in statement 

of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in statement of profit and loss. 

The EIR method is a method of calculat ing the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating 

interest over t he relevant period. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts est imated future cash flows 

(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the EIR, transaction costs and other premiums 

or discounts) through the expected life of the instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net 

carrying amount on initial recognition. 

The Group records loans at amortised cost. 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are 

held within a business model whose objective is achieved by bot h collect ing cont ractual cash flows that give 

rise on specified dates to sole payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and by 
selling financial assets. 



IKF Finance Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 
(All amount in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Movements in the carrying amount of such financial assets are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 

('OCI'), except dividend income and interest income which is recognised in statement of profit and loss. Equity 
instruments at FVOCI are not subject to an impairment assessment. 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at 

fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly 

attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are 

immediately recognised in profit or loss. 

b. Financial Liabilities 

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost. The carrying amounts are determined based on the EIR 

method. Interest expense is recognised in statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition of 

financial liabilities is also recognised in statement of profit and loss. 

c. Equity instruments 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an ent ity after 

deducting all of its liabilit ies. Equity instruments issued by the Group is recognised at t he proceeds received, 

net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

d. Reclassification 

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional 

circumstances in which the Group acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line or in the period the 

Group changes its business model for managing financial assets. Financial liabilities are not reclassified. 

e. De-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities 

i. Financial Assets 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financia l asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) 

is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired. The Group also 

derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for 
de recognition. 

The Group has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either: 

i. The Group has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset, or 

ii. It retains the rights to the cash flows but has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows 

in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement. 

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Group retains the contractual rights to receive the 

cash flows of a financial asset (the 'original asset'), but assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash 

flows to one or more ent ities (the 'eventual recipients'), when all of the following t hree conditions are met: 

i. The Group has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has collected 

equivalent amounts from the original asset, excluding short-term advances with the right to full 

recovery of the amount lent plus accrued interest at market rates. 
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ii. The Group cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventual recipients 

The Group has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients wit hout material delay. 
In addition, the Group is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows, except for investments in cash or cash 

equivalents including interest earned, during the period between the collection date and the date of 
required remittance to the eventual recipients. 

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either: 

i. The Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or 

ii. The Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset 

but has transferred control of the asset. 

The Group considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability to sell the 

asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without 

imposing 

additional restrict ions on the transfer. 

When the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all t he risks and rewards and has retained 

control of the asset, the asset continues to be recognised only to the extent of the Group's continuing 

involvement, in which case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the 
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations t hat the Group has 

retained. 

ii. Financia l liabilities 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. 

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different 

terms, or the terms of an existing liabil ity are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is 

treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. In this case, a new 

financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fa ir value. The difference between t he carrying 

value of the original financial liability and t he new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in 

statement of profit and loss. 

f. Impairment of Financial Assets 

The Group recognises impairment allowances for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on all the financial assets t hat 

are not measured at FVTPL: 

The ECL provision is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of t he asset (t he lifetime 

expected credit loss), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since originat ion, in which 

case, the allowance is based on the 12 months' expected credit loss. 

The 12-month ECL is the portion of Lifetime ECL that represent the ECLs that result from default events on 

financial assets that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. 

The Group performs an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a financial instrument's 

credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition by considering the change in the risk of default 

occurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument. 

Based on the above process, the Group cat egorises its loans into t hree stages as described below: 

For non-impaired financial instruments 
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• Stage 1 is comprised of all non-impaired financial instruments which have not experienced a 

significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition. A 12-month ECL provision is made 

for stage 1 financial instruments. In assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly, the 

Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial inst rument as at the reporting date, 

with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition. 

• Stage 2 is comprised of all non-impaired financial instruments which have experienced a SICR since 

initial recognition. The Group recognises lifetime ECL for stage 2 financia l instruments. In 

subsequent reporting periods, if the credit risk of the financial instrument improves such that there 

is no longer a SICR since initial recognition, then entities shall revert to recognizing 12 months of 

ECL. 

For impaired financia l instruments: 

Financial instruments are classified as stage 3 when there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of 

one or more loss events that have occurred after initial recognition with a negative impact on the estimated 

future cash flows of a loan or a portfolio of loans. The Group recognises lifetime ECL for impaired financial 

instruments. 

The calculation of ECLs 

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows: 

Probability of Default (PD) -

The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default may 

only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognized 

and is st ill in the portfolio. The concept of PD is further explained in Note 41- Risk Management. 

Exposure at Default - The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, 

considering expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal 

and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed facilities, and 

accrued interest from missed payments. 

Loss Given Default - The Loss Given Default is an estimate of t he loss arising in the case where a default 

occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that 

the lender would expect to receive. 

Collateral Valuation 

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Group seeks to use collateral, where possible. The collateral 

comes in various forms, such as movable and immovable assets, guarantees, etc. However, the fair value of 

collateral affects the calculation of ECLs. To t he extent possible, the Group uses active market data for 

valuing financial assets held as collateral. Other financial assets which do not have readily determinable 

market values are va lued using other methodologies. Non-financial collateral, such as vehicles, is valued 

based on data provided by third parties or management judgements. 

Collateral repossessed 

In its normal course of business whenever default occurs, the Group may take possession of properties or 

other assets in its retail portfolio and generally disposes such assets through auction, t o settle outstanding 

debt. Any surplus funds are returned to the customers/obligors. As a result of this practice, assets under 

legal repossession processes are not recorded on the balance sheet. 
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Write-offs 

Loans are written off (either partially or in full) when there is no rea listic prospect of recovery. This is 

generally the case when it is determined that the customer does not have assets or sources of income that 

could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject ed to write-offs. Any subsequent 
recoveries against such loans are credited to the statement of profit and loss. 

g. Derivative Financial Instruments 

A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract with all of the following characteristics: 

• Its value changes in response to the change in a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, 

commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or, 

other variable, provided that, in t he case of a non-financial variable, it is not specific to a party to 

the contract (i.e. underlying) 

• It requires no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than would be 

required for other types of contracts expected to have a similar response to changes in market 

factors. 

• It is settled at future date. 

• The Company enters into derivative transactions with various counterparties to hedge its foreign 

currency risks and interest rate risks. Derivative transaction consists of hedging of foreign exchange 

transactions, which includes interest rate and currency swaps, interest rate options and forwards. 

The Company undertakes derivative transactions for hedging on-balance sheet liabilities. 

Hedge Accounting: 

Initial Recognition and subsequent remeasurement: 

The group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, to hedge its foreign 

currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which 

a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried 

as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fa ir va lue is negative. 

Any gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss. 

h. Determination of fair value 

On initial recognition, all the financial instruments are measured at fair value. For subsequent measurement, 
the Group measures certain categories of financial instruments (as explained in Note 40- Fair Value 

Measurement) at fair value on each balance sheet date. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on 

the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use 

when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 
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A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to 

generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market 

participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Group uses valuation tech niques t hat are appropriate in the ci rcumstances and for which sufficient data 
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use 

of unobservable inputs. 

In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy 

of valuat ion techniques, as summarised below: 

Level 1 financial instruments - Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices 

from active markets for identical.assets or liabilities that the Group has access to at the measurement date. 

The Group considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the 
volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price 

quotes available on the balance sheet date. 

Level 2 financial instruments - Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are 

derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the 

instrument's life. Such inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted 

prices for identical instruments in inactive markets and observable inputs other than quoted prices such as 

interest rates and yie ld curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads. In addition, adjustments may be 

required for the condition or location of the asset or the extent to which it relates to items t hat are 

comparable to the valued instrument. However, if such adjustments are based on unobservable inputs which 

are significant to the entire measurement, the Group will classify the instruments as Level 3. 

Level 3 financial inst ruments - Those that include one or more unobservable input t hat is significant to the 

measurement as whole. 

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period 

during which the change has occurred. No such instances of transfers between levels of the fair value 

hierarchy were recorded during the reporting period. 

2.7 Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and 

accumulated impairment loss (if any). The total cost of the asset comprises the purchase price, taxes, duties, 

freight (net of rebates and discounts) and any other directly attributable costs of bringing the assets to their 

working condition for their intended use. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition of those assets 

which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised. 

Advances paid towards the acquisit ion of assets outstanding at each balance sheet date are disclosed as 

other non-financial assets. The cost of assets not ready for their intended use at each balance sheet date is 

disclosed as capital work-in-progress. 

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line method, over the estimated useful life of each asset as prescribed 

in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 as follows: 

Asset Useful Life 

Building 60 years 

Office Equipment 5 years 

Furniture and Fixture* 10 years 
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Computers 3 years 

Vehicles (Car, Lorry, Bus) 8 years 

Vehicles (Bike, Moped, Cycle) 10 years 

Servers 6 years 

*Useful life for Furniture and Fixture for IKF Home Finance Limited is 5 Years. For these class of assets, based 

on internal assessment and independent technical evaluation carried out by ext ernal valuers the 

management believes that the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which 

management expects to use these assets. Hence the useful lives for these asset s is different from the useful 

lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013. 

An item of property, plant and equipment, is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic 

benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal 

or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment, is determined as the difference between the 

sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss. 

2.8 Intangible asset s 

Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortisation and accumulated 

impairment losses, if any. Cost comprise the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset 

to its working condition for its intended use 

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated useful life. 

The estimated useful life of intangible assets are as follows: 

I Amt 

Softwarn 

Useful Life 

6 years 

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets 

Assessment is done at each balance sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be 

impaired. If any such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset/ cash generating 

unit is made. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset's or cash generating unit's net selling price and its 

value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the 

continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. For the purpose of assessing 

impairment, the recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not 

generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. The 

smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely 

independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets, is considered as a cash generating 

unit (CGU). An asset or CGU whose carrying value exceeds its recoverable amount is considered impaired 

and is written down to its recoverable amount. Assessment is also done at each balance sheet date as to 

whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in prior accounting years 

may no longer exist or may have decreased. 
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2.10 Employee benefits 

Defined Contribution Plan: 

The Group has a defined contribution plan for post-employment benefits in the form of Provident Fund. 

Under the Provident Fund Plan, the Group contributes to a Government administ ered provident fund / 
recognized provident fund on behalf of the employees. The Group has no fu rther obligation beyond making 
the contributions. 

The Group's contribut ions to the above Plan are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Defined Benefit Plan: 

The Group provides for gratuity to all employees. The benefit is in the form of lump sum payments to vested 

employees on resignation, ret irement, or death while in employment or on termination of employment of 

an amount equivalent to 15 days basic salary payable for each completed year of service as required under 

'The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972'. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. 

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit 
method. 

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceil ing, and the return on 
plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised 

immediately in the balance sheet wit h a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in 

the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to statement of profit and loss in 
subsequent periods. 

Net interest is calculated by applying t he discount rate to t he net defined benefit liability or asset. The 

Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement 
of profit and loss: 

- Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and 
non- routine settlements; and 

- Net interest expense or income 

An actuarial val uation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in 

the future. These include t he det ermination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. 

Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, these liabi lities are highly 

sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 

Other Employee Benefits: 

The employees of the Group are entitled to compensated absence and deferred compensation as per the 

policy of the Group, the liability in respect of which is provided, based on an actuarial va luation carried out 

by an independent actuary as at t he year end. The actuarial valuat ion method used by t he independent 
actuary for measuring t lie liability is t he Projected Unit Credit Method. 

Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments and the effects of changes in the actuarial 

assumptions are recognized immediately in t he St atement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise. 

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed within 12 mont hs from 

the end of t he year are treated as short t erm employee benefits. Un utilised leave balance that accrues to 

employees as at the year end is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on an undiscounted basis. 
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2.11 Income Taxes 

Income-tax expense comprises of current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in accordance 

with the income-tax law) and deferred tax charge or credit (reflect ing the tax effects of timing differences 

between accounting income and taxable income for the period). Income-tax expense is recognised in the 

statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in 

OCI. 

(a) Current tax 

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the 

Income Tax Act, 1961, enacted in India. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those 
that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. 

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Group: 

• has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and 

• intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

(b) Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 

liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. 

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and based on management's judgement, are 

reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such 

reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves. 

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it 

has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. 

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when 

they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which 

the Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

Deferred t ax assets and liabilities are offset only if t he Group: 

• has a legally enforceable r ight to set off current t ax assets against current tax liabilities; and 

• the deferred tax assets and th e deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation 

authority. 

2.12 Provision and contingencies 

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable 

that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a 

reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the present 

value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the 

end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that 
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reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The 

increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as finance cost. 

A contract is considered as onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the Group from 

the contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed 

by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the 

Group or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources 

will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there 
is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not recognise 

a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements. 

2.13 Earnings per share 

The Group reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 33 

- "Earnings Per Share" . Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss after tax for 

the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 

during the year. Diluted earnings per share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities or 

other contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per 

share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the year 

by weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and weighted 

average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all potential equity shares. 

2.14 Cash and cash equivalent 

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on 

hand, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in 

value, and bank overdrafts. 

2.15 Statement of cash flows 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects 
of transactions of non-cash future, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or 

payments and item of expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from 

operating, investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated. 

2.16 Share based payments 

The cost of equity-settled t ransactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made 

using an appropriate valuation model. 

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share based payments is expensed on a 

straight line basis over the vesting year, based on the Group ·s estimate of equity instruments that w ill 

eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting year, the Group 

revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of t he 

original estimates, if any, is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss such that the cumulative expenses 

reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the Share Based Payments Reserve. 
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3 Cash and cash equivalents 

Particulars 

Cash on hand 
Balances with banks in current accounts 

Total 

4 Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 

Particulars 

Balances with banks to the extent held as margin money• 

Total 

Asat Asal 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

107.03 101.42 
9,557.28 14,373.00 

9,664.31 14,474.42 

As at Asat 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

2,533.65 4,164.82 

2,533.65 4,164.82 

•Represent margin money depostts placed to avail term loans from banks, financial mst1tut1ons and as cash collateral in connection with 
securitisation transactions. 

5 Receivables 

Particulars As at Asal 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

(I) Trade receivables 
Receivables considered good • Unsecured 28.35 44.67 

28.35 44.67 

Less: Provision for impairment 28.79 
Total 28.35 15.88 

No t rade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person, or from firms 
or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member. 

Trade Receivables Ageing March -22 

Particulars 
Less than 6 6 months-1 

1-2 years 
More than 3 

months year years 

{i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 28.35 
(ii) Undisputed Trade receivables - which have significant 
increase in credit risk 

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 

(iv} Disputed Trade Receivables- considered good 

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant 

increase in credit risk 

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables- credit impaired 

Trade Receivables Ageing March -21 

Particulars 
less than 6 6months- 1 

1-2 years 
More than3 

months year years 
{i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 15.88 
(Ii) Undisputed Trade receivables - which have significant 
increase in credit risk 

(iii) Undisouted Trade Receivables- credit impaired 3.08 21.94 
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables- considered good 
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant 
increase in credit risk 

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 

Total 

28.35 

Total 

15.88 

28.79 
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6 Loans 

Particulars 

(i) Term loans 
(ii) term loans - related parties 

(iii) Staff loans 

Total 
Less: Impairment loss allowance 

Total - Net of impairment loss allowance 

{i) Secured by tangible assets• 
(i) Secured by intangible assets 

(ii) Covered by Bank/ Government Guarantees 
(iii) Unsecured 

Total 
less: Impairment loss allowance 
Total - Net of impairment loss allowance 

(i} Public sectors 

(ii) Others 

Total 
less: Impairment loss allowance 

Total - Net of impairment loss allowance 

(i) Loans in India 

(ii) loans outside India 

Tota l 
Less: Impairment loss allowance 

Total • Net of impairment loss allowance 

•secured against hypothecat1on of automobiles, book debts, equitable mortgage of immovable property etc. 

Asat As at 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

1,92,822.33 1,62,605.18 

35.04 49.69 

1,92,857.37 1,62,654.87 

3,647.25 3,870.19 

1,89,210.12 1,58,784.68 

1,92,857.37 1,62,654.87 

1,92,857.37 1,62,654.87 

3,647.25 3,870.19 

1,89,210.12 1,58,784.68 

1,92,857.37 1,62,654.87 

1,92,857 .37 1,62,654.87 

3,647.25 3,870.19 

1,89,210.12 1,58,784.68 

1,92,857.37 1,62,654.87 

1,92,857.37 1,62,654.87 

3,647.25 3,870.19 

1,89,210.12 1,58,784.68 

6.1 The table below discloses credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the company's year end stage classification. The numbers 

presented are gross of impairment loss allowance: 

Particulars 
As at Asat 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Term loans 

Stage I 1,61,721.80 1,00,018. 78 

Stage II 26,443.87 58,131.52 

Stage Ill 4,656.66 4,454.88 

Total 1,92,822.33 1,62,605.18 
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7 Other Financial Assets 

Pa rticulars 

Rent and utility deposit 

Excess Interest Spread (EIS) Receivables 
Other •unsecured, considered good 

Total 

8 Investments 

Particulars 

' Investment in Equity instruments 

Total(A) 

(i) Investments in India 

(ii} Investments outside India 

Total (B) 

As at As at 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

299.17 175.11 

2,719.59 1,508.93 

174.64 333.49 

3,193.40 2,017.53 

Asat Asat 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

• In accordance with the Amendment to the Share Purchase Agreement dated March 23, 2018 executed on October 20, 2018, the company has 
subscribed to the 2,91,14,747 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each (fully paid) at a premium of Rs. 2.6228 per share in IKF Home Finance Limited during the 

year ended March 31, 2019. 

Further, the company subscribed to the 85,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each {fully paid) at par on preferential allotment basis in IKF Home Finance 

limited during the year ended March 31, 2019. 

Further, the company subscribed to the 1,97,89,430 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each with a premium of Rs 21.52 per Share {Party paid of Rs 2.77) at par 

on preferential allotment basis in IKF Home Finance Limited during the year ended March 31, 2022 

9 Other Non·Financial Assets 

Particulars Asat As at 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Prepaid expenses 168.34 34.26 
Advances to employees 7.04 6.42 
GST input credit 404.84 345.10 
Other -unsecured, considered good 500.00 15.92 

Total 1,080.22 401.70 



6.2 Gross movement of loans for the year ended March 31, 2022:-

Particulars 

Gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2021 
Term loans 
Staff loans 

New loans originated during the year 
Term loans 
Staff loans 

Inter-stage movements: 
-Term loans 

Transfers to Stage 1 

Transfers to Stage 2 
Transfers to Stage 3 

Interest on stage 3 loans 
Amounts written off 

Term loans 
Staff loans 

Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding write offs) 
Term loans 
Staff loans 

Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 
Term loans 
Staff loans 

6.3 Gross movement of loans for the year ended March 31, 2021:-

Particulars 

Gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2020 

Term loans 
Staff loans 

New loans originated during the year 
Term loans 
Staff loans 

Inter-stage movements: 
-Term loans 

Transfers to Stage 1 
Transfers to Stage 2 
Transfers to Stage 3 

Interest on stage 3 loans 
Amounts written off 

Term loans 
Staff loans 

Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding write offs) 
Term loans 

Staff loans 

Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2021 
Term loans 
Staff loans 

6.4 ECL movement of term loans during the year ended March 31, 2022:-

Particulars 
Gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2021 
New loans originated during the year 
Inter-stage movements: 

Transfers to Stage 1 

Transfers to Stage 2 
Transfers to Stage 3 

Amounts written off 
Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding write offs) 
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 

6.5 ECL movement of term loans during the year ended March 31, 2021:-

Particulars 
Gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2020 
New loans originated during the year 
Inter-stage movements: 

Transfers to Stage 1 
Transfers to Stage 2 
Transfers to Stage 3 

Amounts written off 
Assets derecognised or repaid {excluding write offs) 
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2021 

Stage I 

1,00,018.78 

49.69 

99,110.41 
6.35 

17,773.41 

(9,592.88) 

(637.07) 

(48.00) 

(44,902.85) 
{21.00) 

1,61,721.80 
35.04 

Stage I 

93,253.81 

18.9S 

51,712.08 

10,673.59 

(27,586.92) 
(1,351.59) 

(158.19) 

(26,524.00) 

30.74 

1,00,018.78 
49.69 

Stage I 
1,023.56 

861.26 

659.50 
(189.15) 

(46.96) 

{1.49) 

(962.22) 
1,344.50 

Stage I 
1,235.11 

530.58 

643.76 

(323.13) 

(15.56) 

(6.6S) 

(1,040.55) 
1,023.56 

Stage II Stage Ill Tot.11 

58,131.52 4,454.88 1,62,605.17 

49.69 

2,811.58 104.45 1,02,026.44 
6.35 

(17,658.73) (114.68) 

9,668.04 {75.16) 

(1,753.03) 2,390.10 
113.81 113.81 

(103.66) (584.28) (735.96) 

{24,651.85) {1,632.43) {71,187.13) 
{21.00) 

26,443.87 4,656.66 1,92,822.33 
35.04 

Stage II Stage Ill Total 

45,302.29 3,631.91 1,42,188.01 
18.95 

9,162.23 114.71 60,989.02 

(10,208.24) (465.35) 

27,874.85 (287.93) 
(2,042.57) 3,394.16 

98.96 98.96 

(320.81) (594.60) (1,073.60) 

(11,636.23) (1,436.98) (39,597.21) 

30.74 

58,131.52 4,454.88 1,62,605.18 

49.69 

Stage II Stage Ill Total 
1,582.69 1,263.94 3,870.19 

72.22 39.11 972.59 

(627.85) (31.64) 

229.21 (40.06) 

(80.56) 127.51 

(14.10) (395.79) (411.38) 

(457.66) 635.73 1784.15) 

703.95 1,598.80 3,647.25 

Stage II Stage Ill Total 

1,868.77 1,061.41 4,165.29 

225.68 28.90 785.16 

(428.75) (215.01) 

395.00 (71.87) 

(89.36) 104.92 
(3S.05) (365.37) (407.07) 

(353.60) 720.96 (673.19) 

1,582.69 



IKF Finance Limited 
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2022 

(Currency: INR in lakhs) 

10 Property, plant and equipment 

Particulars 
Leasehold Furniture and 

Improvements Fixtures 

Gross carrying amount 

As at March 31, 2020 29.13 259.67 
Additions . 28.57 
Disposals . . 

As at March 31, 2021 29.13 288.24 

Additions . 32.55 
Disposals . 

As at March 31, 2022 29.13 320.79 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment: 

As at March 31, 2020 7.66 68.07 
Depreciation for the year 2.95 36.43 
Disposals . . 

As at March 31, 2021 10.60 104.49 
Depreciation for the year 2.95 40.37 
Disposals . 

As at March 31, 2022 13.55 144.85 

Net book value 

As at March 31, 2020 21.47 191.60 
As at March 31, 2021 18.53 183.75 
As at March 31, 2022 15.58 175.94 

Computer & Office 
Vehicles Total 

Right to Use 

Printer equipment Assets 

101.50 27.31 111.34 528.94 182.50 
16.26 1.13 45.97 23.21 

(0.34) . (0.34) (18.21) 

117.42 28.44 111.34 574.57 187.50 

82.16 0.16 . 114.86 4.92 
(0.25) (0.25) (1.67) 

199.33 28.60 111.34 689.18 190.74 

61.19 8.06 25.53 170.50 102.76 

24.98 4.15 16.07 84.59 49.10 

0.06 0.06 (10.06) 

86.24 12.21 41.60 255.14 141.80 
28.69 3.98 15.25 91.24 30.19 

(0.20) (0.20) 10.93) 

114.73 16.19 56.85 346.18 171.07 

40.31 19.25 85.81 358.43 79.73 

31.18 16.23 69.74 319.40 45.71 

84.60 12.41 54.49 343.00 19.67 

Note: The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment during the years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021. Hence, the amount of change 
in gross and net carrying amount due to revaluation and impairment losses/reversals is nil. 



IKF Finance Limited 
Notes forming part of Co nsolidated Financial Statements for the Year e nded March 31, 2022 
(Currency : INR in lakhs) 

11 Investment Property 

Particulars 

Gross carrying amount 

As at March 31, 2020 
Additions 
Disposals 

As at March 31, 2021 
Additions 
Disposals 

As at March 31, 2022 

As at March 31, 2020 
Depreciation for the year 
Disposals 

As at March 31, 2021 

Depreciation for the year 
Disposals 

As at March 31, 2022 

Net book value 
As at March 31, 2020 

As at March 31, 2021 
As at March 31, 2022 

{i) Amounts recognised in Stateme nt of Profit and Loss for Investment Property 

Particulars 

Rental Income 
Direct operating expense from property that generated rental income 
Profit from investment properties before depreciation 
Depreciation 
Profit from investment properties 

{ii) Contractual obligations 

Buildings Vaca nt Site 

6.98 6.98 

6.98 
224.11 

(116.10) 

6.98 108.01 

0.34 
0.17 

0.51 
0.17 

0.68 

6.64 6.98 
6.47 
6.30 108.01 

Year ended 
March 31, 2022 

7.63 

7.63 
0.17 
7.46 

The Company has no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment property. However, the 
responsibility for its repairs, maintenance or enhancements is with the Company. 

( iii) Pledged details 

Investment property pledged in favor of consortium leader cent ral bank for cash credit facility. 

(iv) Estimation of fair va lue 

The fair values of investment property is determined by guidance value given by the local government of the area where the 
investment properties are located. 

(v) Revaluation 

Tota l 

13.96 

6.98 
224.11 

(116.10) 

114.99 

0.34 
0.17 

0.51 
0.17 

0.68 

13.62 
6.47 

114.31 

Year ended 
March 31, 

2021 
6.36 

6.36 
0.17 
6.19 

The Company has not revalued any of its investment property during the years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021. Hence, the 
amount of change in gross and net carrying amount due to revaluation and impairment losses/reversals is nil. 



IKF Finance Limited 
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2022 

(Currency: INR in lakhs) 

12 Intangible assets 

Particulars . Computer software 

Gross carrying amount 

As at March 31, 2020 318.68 

Additions 47.95 

Disposal . 

As at March 31, 2021 366.63 

Additions 37.27 

Disposal . 

As at March 31. 2022 403.90 

Accumulated amortisation and impairment 

As at March 31, 2020 99.99 

Amortisation for the year 59.31 

Disposal . 

As at March 31, 2021 159.30 

Amortisation for the year 68.64 

Disposal . 

As at March 31, 2022 227.93 

Net book value 

As at March 31, 2020 218.69 

As at March 31, 2021 207.32 

As at March 31, 2022 175.97 

Note: The Company has not revalued any of its intangible assets during the years ended March 

31, 2022 and March 31, 2021. Hence, the amount of change in gross and net carrying amount 

due to revaluation and impairment losses/reversals is nil. 



IKF Finance Limited 
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2022 
(Currency: INR in lakhs) 

13 Debt Securities 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

At amortised cost 
Secured 

Non convertible debentures 19,991.02 41,448.94 

Unsecured 
Other non convertible debentures 3,816.89 1,761.82 

Commercial Paper -

Total 23,807.91 43,210.76 

Debt Securities: 

Within India 23,807.91 43,210.76 

Outside India -

Total 23,807.91 43,210.76 

Nature of security 

Non convertible debentures (secured) 
Non convertible debentures are secured by an exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of specific loan receivable created out of t he loan proceeds and mortgage of oersonal 
properties of directors in addition to their personal guarantees. 

The Company has utilised the funds raised from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which they were 

The Company has borrowed funds from banks and financial inst itutions on the basis of security of current assets. It has filed quarterly returns or statements of current assets 

with banks and financial institutions and the said returns/statements are in agreement with books of accounts. 



IKF Finance Limited 
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2022 
(Currency: INR in lakhs) 

Terms of repayment of Debt securities as on March 31, 2022 
Due within 1 year 

Original maturity loan Interest rate No. of Amount 
Installments (In lakhs) 

Monthly repayment schedule 

1-7 Years 
- -

Quarterly repayment schedule 

9.01%-10.00% - -

1-5 Years 
10.01%-11.00% -
11.01%-12.00% - -
12.01%-12.50% 5 650 

Yearly repayment schedule 

8.51%-9.50% -

1-5 Years 
9.51%-10.50% 1 833.33 
10.51%-11.50% -
11.51%-12.50% -

Bullet repayment schedule 

8.51%-9.50% 1 1,250 

1-7 Years 
9.51%-10.50% 
10.51%-11.50% 

1 1,500 

11.51%-12.50% 

Total 4,233.33 
Add : Interest accrued but not due 

less : Unamortized Finance Cost 
Total Amortized Cost 4,233.33 

Terms of repayment of Debt securities as on March 31, 2021 
Due within 1 year 

Original maturity loan Interest rate No. of Amount 
Installments (In lakhs) 

Monthly repayment schedule 

1-7 Years 
- - -

Quarterly repayment schedule 

9.01%-10.00% 3 3,750.00 

1-5 Years 10.01%-11.00% -
11.01%-12.00% 
12.01%-12.50% 8 1,100.00 

Yearly repayment schedule 

8.51%-9.50% 

1-5 Years 
9.51%-10.50% 
10.51%-11.50% 

1 833.33 

11.51%-12.50% -
Bullet repayment schedule 

8.51%-9.50% 3 15,500.00 

1-7 Years 9.51%-10.50% -
10.51%-11.50% 2 600.00 
11.51%-12.50% - -

Total 21,783.33 
Add : Interest accrued but not due 
Less : Unamortized Finance Cost 

Total Amortized Cost 21,783.33 

Due between 2 to 5 Years Due more than 5 Years 

No. of Amount No. of Amount Total 

Installments {In lakhs) Installments (In lakhs) 

-
-

650.00 

-
1 833.33 1,666.67 

1 5,000 6,250.00 

5 7,500 9,000.00 

4 5,500 5,500.00 
-

18,833.33 23,066.67 

832.59 
(91.35) 

18,833.33 23,807.91 

Due be tween 2 to 5 Years Due more than 5 Years 

No. of Amount No. of Amount Total 
Installments (In lakhs) Installments (In lakhs) 

I 

1 1,250.00 5,000.00 

- -

5 650.00 1, 750.0v 

-
2 1,666.67 2,500.00 

- --
- I 

- - iS,500 00 

3 6,000.00 6,000.00 
3 5,500.00 6,100.00 
1 5,000.00 5,000.00 

20,066.67 41,850.00 

1,496.87 
(136.11) 

20,066.67 43,210.76 



IKF Finance Limited 
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for t he Year ended March 31, 2022 
(Currency : INR in lakhs) 

14 Borrowings (other than debt securi t ies) 

Particulars 

At amortised cost 

Term loans (Secured) 
from banks 
from non banking financial companies 

from financial institutions 

From National Housing Bank (NHS) 

Term loans (Un Secured) 

from other parties 

Loans repayable on demand (Secured): 

Cash credit from Bank 

Associated liabilities in respect of securitisation 
transactions 

Total 

Borrowings: 
Within India 

Outside India 

Total 

Nature of security 

Term loans (secured) 

As at Asat 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

74,327.96 43,940.41 
10,993.61 8,632.55 
9,426.44 3,825.83 

3,088.86 2,195.84 

176.00 

33,430.48 26,566.40 

871.72 6,811.66 

1,32,139.08 92,148.69 

1,32,139.08 92,148.69 

1,32,139.08 92,148.69 

Term Loans from bank, financial institutions and NBFCs are secured by an exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of specific loan receivable created out of the loan proceeds and cash 

collateral by way of fixed deposits and mortgage of personal properties of directors in addition to their personal guarantees. 

loans repayable on demand (Secured) 

These loans are secured against the first pari passu charge on current assets, book debts and receivables including loans & advances of the Company as per the agreement. Fun her. the loan 
has been guaranteed by personal guarantee of director/promoter to the extent of INR 342.20 Cr (March 31, 2021: INR 312.20 Cr ). 

The Company has utilised the funds raised from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which they were borrowed. 

The Company has borrowed funds from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. It has filed quarterly returns or statements of current assets wi th banks and 
financial institutions and the said returns/statements are in agreement with books of accounts. 



Terms of repayment of borrowings (other than debt} as on March 31 2022 ' 
Due within 1 year Due between 2 to 5 Years Due more than 5 Years 

Original maturity loan Interest rate 
No. of No. of 

Amount 
No. of Total Amount Amount 

lnstallme 
(In lakhs} 

lnstallme 
(In lakhs) 

lnstallme 
(In lakhs} 

nts nts nts 

Mont hly repayment schedule 

5.00%-6.00% 1 245.00 245.00 

6.01%-7.00% 4 5,335.00 5,335.00 

7.01%-8.00% 12 930.71 11 869.33 1,800.04 

1-7 Years 8.01%-9.00% 195 9,083.68 422 19,554.25 28,637.92 

9.01%-10.50% 135 2,699.58 214 3,940.44 6,640.02 

10.51%-11.50% 23 1,098.13 28 1,166.67 2,264.80 

11.51%-12.50% 28 1,692.40 - 1,692.40 

Quarterly repayment schedule 

6.00%-7.00% 12 227.40 64 1,208.59 17 427.80 1,863.79 

7.01%-8.00% 6 216.00 25 770.95 986.95 

8.01%-9.00% 51 10,639.05 109 22,993.69 8 1,571.43 35,204.16 
1-5 Years 

9.01%-10.50% 19 3,916.72 44 7,314.36 11 366.35 11,597.43 

10.51%-11.50% 19 1,318.24 19 796.59 2,114.82 

11.51%-12.50% 

Bullet repayment schedule 

5.00%-6.00% 

9.51%-10.50% 

1-14 Years 10.51%-11.50% 
11.51%-12.50% 

>13.50% 

Repayable on Demand 9.01%-10.50% 

Total 37,401.90 58,614.86 2,365.58 98,382.34 

Add : Interest accrued but not due 166.92 

Less: Unamortized Finance Cost (712.39) 

Total Amortized Cost 37,401.90 58,614.86 - 2,365.58 97,836.87 

Terms of repayment of borrowings (other than debt} as on March 31 2021 ' 
Due within 1 year Due between 2 to 5 Years Due more than 5 Years 

Original maturity Joan Interest rate 
No. of No. of 

Amount 
No. of Total Amount Amount 

lnstallme 
(In lakhs} 

lnstallme 
(In lakhs) 

lnstallme 
(In lakhs) 

nts nts nts 

Monthly repayment schedule 
6.00%-7.00% 1 860.00 860.00 

7.01%-8.00% 20 1,692.66 23 1,821.75 3,514.41 

1-7 Years 
8.01%-9.00% 58 1,540.33 132 3,104.31 8.00 4.99 4,649.63 

9.01%-10.50% 92 1,438.38 186 1,543.28 2,981.66 

10.51%-11.50% 36 1,790.55 17 770.24 2,560.79 

11.51%-12.50% 84 4,619.98 74 3,551.32 8,171.30 

Quarterly repayment schedule 
6.00%-7.00% 6 57.00 32 304.00 16.00 139.00 500.00 

7.01%-8.00% 7 269.00 28 933.00 5.00 79.00 1,281.00 

1-5 Years 
8.01%-9.00% 23 3,850.00 74 12,796.70 1.00 239.88 16,886.58 

9.01%-10.50% 27 4,743.67 34 9,215.89 13,959.56 

10.51%-11.50% 4 666.67 5 832.99 1,499.66 

11.51%-12.50% 35 385.26 89 1,241.84 1,627.10 

Bullet repayment schedule 
5.00%-6.00% 1 420.00 420.00 

9 .51%-10.50% 
1-14 Years 10.51%-11.50% - -

11.51%-12.50% 

>13.50% 

Repayable on Demand 9.01%-10.50% 1 175.00 - 175.00 

Total 22,508.50 36,115.32 462.87 59,086.69 

Add : Interest accrued but not due 67.83 

Less: Unamortized Finance Cost (383.89) 

Total Amortized Cost 22,508.50 - 36,115.32 462.87 58,770.63 



IKF Finance Limited 
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2022 

(Currency: INR in lakhs) 

15 Subordinated Liabilities 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31, 2022 M arch 31, 2021 

Unsecured - At amortised cost 

Non convertible debentures {Tier-II) 4,505.22 4,500.44 

Indian rupee loan from banks (Tier-II) 1,498.23 1,486.35 

Total 6,003.45 5,986.79 

Subordinated liabilities: 

Within India 6,003.45 5,986.79 

Outside India 

Total 6,003.45 5,986.79 

Terms of repayment of subordinated liabilities as on March 31, 2022 
Due within l year Due between 2 to 5 Years 

Original maturity loan Interest rate No. of I Amount No. of I Amount 
Installments {In lakhs) Installments {In lakhs) 

Bullet repayment schedule 

1-7 Years 
11.51%-12.50% 1.001 1,500.00 21 4,500.00 
>13.50% I I 

Total I 4,500.00 
Add : Interest accrued but not due 

Less : Unamortized Finance Cost 
Total Amortized Cost I 4,500.00 

Terms of repayment of subordinated liabilities as on March 31, 2022 
Due within l year Due between 2 to 5 Years 

Original maturity loan Interest rate No. of I Amount No. of 

I 
Amount 

Installments (In lakhs) Installments {In lakhs) 
Bullet repayment schedule 

1-7 Years 
11.51%-12.50% -I - 1 I 1,500.00 

>13.50% -I - 1 I 2,000.00 

Total I 3,500.00 
Add : Interest accrued but not due 
Less : Unamortized Finance Cost 

Total Amortized Cost I 3,500.00 

Due more than 5 Years 

No. of I Amount Total 

Installments {In lakhs) 

I 6,000.00 

I 

I - 6,000.00 
37.37 

(33.92) 

I 6,003.45 

Due more than 5 Years 

No. of I Amount Total 

Installments {In lakhs) 

I 1,500.00 

1 I 2,500.00 4,500.00 

I 2,500.00 6,000.00 

37.71 
(50.92) 

I 2,500.00 5,986.79 



IKF Finance Limited 
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2022 
(Currency: INR in lakhs) 

16 Other financial liabilities 

Particulars 
As at 

March 31, 2022 

Lease Liabilities 20.09 
Employee benefits payable 237.92 
Expenses payable 4.45 
Other Payables 832.20 
Deposit from franchisees 341.41 
Payable towards securitisation / assignment transactions 1,666.93 

Total 3,103.00 

17 Provisions 

Particulars 
Asat 

March 31, 2022 

Provision for gratuity 150.63 
Provision for leave benefits 194.71 

Total 345.34 

18 Other non-financial liabilities 

Particulars 
As at 

March 31, 2022 

Statutory dues payable 157.27 

Total 157.27 

As at 
March 31, 2021 

48.89 
153.10 

7.66 
675.59 
501.93 

2,196.50 

3,583.67 

Asat 
March 31, 2021 

127.59 
175.63 

303.22 

Asat 
March 31, 2021 

148.76 

148.76 



IKF Finance Limited 
Notes formlns part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 20 22 
(Currency: INR in lakhs} 

20. Other equity 

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 

Capital reserve 32.50 

Securities premium reserve 10,576.37 

Share Based Payment reserve 24.62 

Statutory Reserve under section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 4,993.50 

St.1tutory Reserve U/s 29C of NHB Act 710.S7 

Provision U/s 36(vlia) Income tax Act, 1961 37.98 

General reserve 1,221.46 

Retained earnings 18,183.90 

Total 35,780.90 

Nature and purpose of reserve 

a. Capital reserve 

As at March 31, 2021 

32.50 

9,960.39 

30.65 
4,187.41 

~60.46 
37.98 

1,019.94 
l~,440.00 

30,169.33 

This reserve was created to rKOrd the excess urrying value of optionatty convertible debentures provided throu1h securities premium. The excess 

value is recorded by reversing the upital reserve with corresponding debit to debentures. 

b. Securities premium reserve 

The securities premium reserve is used to record the premium received on issut of shares. The reserve cab be utilised only for limited purpose such 

as Issuance of bonus shares in accordance with provision of the Companies Act, 2013. 

c.. Statutory reserve 
Reserves created under Section 4SIC of The Reserve Bank or India Act, 1934 

d. Share based payment rese,ve 

The share based payment reserve 15 used to reco&nise the cr1nt date fa ir value of options issued t o employees of the Company and its subsidiaries 
under stock option schemes of the Company. 

e. Retained earnln&s 

Retained earnings represents surplus/ accumulated ea rninas of the Company and are a vailable for distribution to shareholders. 

8. Move ment In Other equity 

Partlculars 
As at March 31, 2022 As at Marth 31, 2021 

I. Cls,ital Reserve 

Opening balance 32.50 32.SO 

Add: Share Issued during the year 
32.50 32.50 

U. Securities premium reserve 

Opening balance 9,960.39 9.085.06 
Add : Premium received on issue of secunties 615.97 875.33 

10,576.37 9,960.39 

Ill. Share Based Payment reserve 

Opening balance l0.65 17.56 

Add: Curing the year (6.03) 13.09 

24.62 30.65 

IV. Statutory Reserve under section 45-lC of the Reserve 
Bank of India Att, 1934 

Open inc balance 4,187.41 3,549.31 

Add: Transfer from retained earninas 806.09 638.10 
4,993.50 4,187.41 

V. Statutory Reserve U/s 29C of NHS Act 
Opening balance 460.46 126.60 

Add: Transfer from re tained earnincs 250.11 333.86 

710.57 460.46 

VI. Provision U/s 36(viia) Income tax Act, 1961 
Opening: balance 37.98 37.98 

Add: Transfer from retained earnings 
37.98 37.98 

VU. Gentral Reserve 

Opening bala nce 1,019.94 860.(l 

Add: Transfer from retained earnings 201.52 159.53 

1,221.46 l 019.94 

VIII. Retained tarnlncs 
Opening balance 1(,440.00 11,845.59 

Add: Profit for the year 5,037.77 3,712.93 

Add : Prior Period items 9.60 0.85 

Add : Other comprehensive income 9.58 12.12 

Appropriations: 

Trinsfer to Statutory Reserve u/s 45·1C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 193( (806.09) (638.10) 

Transfer to Statutory NHB Reserve (250.11) (333.86) 

Transfer to He<1ge Reserve (55.l3) 

Transfer to General reserve (201.52 (159.53) 

18,183.90 14,439.99 

Total 18.183.90 14,440.00 



IKF Finance Limited 
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2022 
(Currency: INR in lakhs) 

19. Equity share capital 

Particulars 
As at March 31, 2022 

Number Amount 
Authorised Capital 
Equity shares of INR 10 each 6,00,00,000 6,000.00 
Preference shares of INR 100 each 25,00,000 2,500.00 

6,25,00,000 8,500.00 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares 
Equity Shares of INR 10 each fully paid up 4,74,79,379 4,747.94 
Coverted from Partly Paid to Fully Paid Equity Shares 51,79,688 517.97 

5,26,59,067 5,265.91 
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares 

Equity Shares of INR 10 each, Fully paid up INR 10 per share 
(Partly paid up INR 8.10 per share in March 2021) 51,79,688 517.97 
Converted to Fully Paid Equity Shares (51,79,688) (517.97) 

Total 5,26,59,067 5,265.91 

A. Reconciliation of number of shares 

Particulars 
As at March 31, 2022 

Number Amount 

Fully paid equity share of INR 10 each 
At the beginning of the year 4,74,79,379 4,747.94 
Shares issued during the year 
Coverted from Partly Paid to Fully Paid Equity Shares 51,79,688 517.97 
Outstanding at the end of the year 5,26,59,067 5,265.91 

Partly paid up equity share of INR 10 each, partly paid up INR 8.10 per 
share 

(Partly paid up INR 5.40 per share in March 2020) 
At the beginning of the year 51,79,688 419.55 
Amount called/Issued during the year 98.41 
Converted to Fully Paid Equity Shares -51,79,688 (517.97) 
Outstand ing at the end of the year . 

Notes: 

B. Terms/rights attached to equity shares 

As at March 31, 2021 

Number Amount 

6,00,00,000 6,000.00 
25,00,000 2,500.00 

6,25,00,000 8,500.00 

4,74,79,379 4,747.94 

4,74,79,379 4,747.94 

51,79,688 419.55 

51,79,688 419.55 

5,26,59,067 5,167.49 

As at March 31, 2021 

Number Amount 

4,74,79,379 4,747.94 

4,74,79,379 4,747.94 

51,79,688 279.70 
139.85 

51,79,688 419.55 

The Company has only one class of equi ty shares having par value of INR 10 per share fully paid up. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. 
dividend in Indian Rupees. The dividend if and when proposed by the Board of Directors will be subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General M 
dividend. 

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the equity shareholders will be entitled to receive remaining assets o f the Company, aher distribution of all preferential amo, 
number of equity shares held by the shareholder. 
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C. Details of shareholder(s) holding more than 5% of equity shares in the Company: 

As at March 31, 2022 

Name of shareholder No. of shares 

held 
% Holding 

Eguity shares of INR 10 each fully gaid ug 

Vupputuri Gopala Kishan Prasad 1,97,43,156 37.49% 
India Business Excellence Fund-llA 1,30,51,546 24.78% 

Vistra ITCL (India) Limited (formerly known as IL and FS Trust Company 

Limited) (Trustee of Business Excellence Trust-II • India Business Excellence 

Fund II) 78,04,018 14.82% 

Koganti Vasumathi Devi 26,47,266 5.03% 

Eguity Shares of INR 10 each, gartly gaid ug INR 8.10 

ger share in March 2021 

Vupputuri Gopala Kishan Prasad 0.00% 
Koganti Vasumathi Devi 0.00% 
Devineni Vasantha Lakshmi 0.00% 
Vupputuri Raghu Ram 0.00% 
Vupputuri Indira Devi 0.00% 

As at March 31, 2021 

No. of shares 
held 

% Holding 

1,58, 75,616 33.44% 

1,30,51,546 27.49% 

78,04,018 16.44% 

21,31,286 4.49% 

35,05,821 67.68% 

5,15,980 9.96% 

4,85,677 9.38% 

3,50,970 6.78% 

3,21,240 6.20% 

As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding 

beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares. 

D. Shareholding of Promotors 

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 

Shares held by promotors at the end of the year % Change during 
No. of Shares % of Total Shares 

the year 
No. of Shares % of Total Shares 

a. Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up • 

Vupputuri Gopala Kishan Prasad 1,97,43,156 37.49% 24.36% 1,58,75,616 33.44% 

Vupputuri Indira Devi 16,48,142 3.13% 24.21% 13,26,902 2.79% 
Koganti Vasumathi Devi 26,47,266 5.03% 24.21% 21,31,286 4.49% 
Devineni Vasantha Lakshmi 24,91,794 4.73% 24.21% 20,06,117 4.23% 
Vupputuri Raghu Ram 18,00,670 3.42% 24.21% 14,49,700 3.05% 
Durga Rani Chunduri 14,94,100 2.84% 0.00% 14,94,100 3.15% 
Sinha Satyanand Chunduri 1,17,700 0.22% 0.00% 1,17,700 0.25% 

b. Equity shares of INR 10 each partly paid up INR 8.10 

oer share in March 2021 • 

Vupputuri Gopala Kishan Prasad - 0.00% -100% 35,05,821 67.68% 

Vupputuri Indira Devi 0.00% ·100% 3,21,240 6.20% 
Koganti Vasumathi Devi 0.00% -100% 5,15,980 9.96% 
Devineni Vasantha Lakshmi 0.00% ·100% 4,85,677 9.38% 
Vupputuri Raghu Ram 0.00% -100% 3,50,970 6.78% 

• Partly paid shares are full paid and converted to fully paid equity shares 

% Change during 

the year 

0.05% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 
0.00% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

E. Aggregate number of equity shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date: 

Particular 
As at As at Asat As at As at 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 
Equity shares of~ 10 each, fully paid up, allotted on 

conversion of 19,53,125/ · 0.01% Compulsorily 

convertible preference share of INR 100 each, Fully - 195.31 
paid-up 
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21 Interest income 

Particulars 

On financial assets measured at amortised cost 
Interest on loans 
Interest on deposits with banks 

Total 

22 Fees and commission income 

Particulars 

Other fees and charges 

Total 

23 Other income 

Particulars 

Interest on income tax refund 

Rental income 

Miscellaneous Income 

Total 

24.1 Finance costs 

Particulars 

On financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 
Interest on deposits 
Interest on borrowings 
Interest on commercial paper and bonds 
Interest on debentures 
Interest on subordinated liabilities 
Interest on ICO 
Interest on lease liabilities 
Interest on securitisation .... ........... ............ ·-

Bank Charges 
Other finance cost 

Total 

24.Z Net loss on fair value changes 

Particulars 

Net loss on fair value changes 

Total 

25 Impairment on financial instruments 

Particulars 

On financial instruments measured at amortised cost 
Loans 
Trade receivables 
Bad debts and write offs 

Total 

26 Employee benefits expenses 

Particulars 

Salaries and wages 
Contribution to provident and other funds 
Share based payment to employees 
Staff welfare expenses 
Gratuity 
Leave encashment 

Total 

Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

26,146.27 23,201.48 
lSS.33 221.02 

26,301.60 23,422.50 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

660.1S 329.07 

660.1S 329.07 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

7.68 
7.63 6.36 

200.33 43.29 

207.96 S7.33 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

70.16 84.87 
8,919.18 8,127.92 

2,788.96 2,237.S2 
731.13 843.17 

3.79 4.77 
47S.13 1,025.83 

12.96 11.48 
616.61 S21.S3 

13,617.92 12,865.82 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

3.35 

3.3S 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

(222.93) (29S.10) 
(26.21) 3.08 
762.1S 1,073.59 

S13.01 781.57 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

4,233.6S 3,083.94 
231.42 169.04 

(6.03) 13.09 
96.83 6S.77 
47.S2 39.27 
47.07 66.99 

4,6S0.46 3,438.10 
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27 Depreciation, amortization and Impairment 

Particulars 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 

Depreciation on investment property 
Amortization of intangible assets 

Total 

28 Othe,.- expenses 

Particulars 

Rent 
Communication cost 

Travelling and conveyance 

Rates and taxes 
Insurance 
Commission and Brokerage 

Repairs and maintenance 
Printing and stationary 
Payment to auditors (Refer Note 28.1) 
Advertisement, public.ity and sales promotion expenses 

Operation Cos t 
Legal and professional fees 
Corporate social responsibility (Refer Note 28.2) 
Director sitting fees 
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 
Loss on sale of Investment Property 
Miscellaneous expenses 

Total 

28.1 Payment to the auditors: 

Particulars 

Auditor's remuneration 
-Audit fees 

In other capacity 
• Certification services 
Other of pocket expenses 
Total 

28.2 Corporate social responsibility: 

Particulars 

a ) Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 
b) Amount of expenditure incurred 

i) Construction/acquisition of any asset 
ii) On purposes other than (i) above 

c) Shortfall at the end of the year 
d) Total of previous years shortfall 
e) Net Shortfall 

f) Reason for shortfall 
g) Natuure of CSR activities 

Year ended 
March 31, ZOU 

121.43 

0.17 

68.63 

190,23 

Year ended 
March 31, 2022 

241.29 

70.79 
142.23 
274.65 

14.57 

39.64 

73.33 

32.82 
35.57 

3.36 

69.18 
222.48 

111.78 

1.00 

6.10 

17.51 

1,356.30 

Year ended 
March 31, 2022 

24,60 

10.91 
0.06 

35.57 

Year ended 
March 31, 2022 

104.07 

111.78 

NA 
Disaster relief. 

Sanitation and Hygiene. 
h} Details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust controlled by 

the company in relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard 

i) Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering mto a 
contractual obligation, the movements in the provision during the year shall be 
shown separately. 

Year ended 
March 31, 2021 

133.70 

0.17 
59.31 

193.18 

Year ended 

March 31, 2021 

183.12 

SS.57 
82.69 

228.20 

9.27 

26.20 

62.02 
28.17 

43.50 

4.19 
56.29 

174.83 

252.52 

12.57 

1,219.14 

Year ended 
March 31, 2021 

33.00 

9.25 
1.25 

43.50 

Year ended 
March 31, 2021 

86.40 

252.52 

162.23 

NA 

Disaster relief, 
Sanitation and Hygiene. 
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29 Income ta ,c 

(a) Income t ax expense 

Particulars 

Current tax 
Current tax on profits for the year 
Adiustment for current tax of the prior periods 

Subtotal (Al 

Deferred tax 

Oecrease/(lncrease) in deferred tax asseu 
(Decrease)/lncrease in deferred tax liabilities 
Subtotal (Bl 

Deferred ta• asset/ (liability) relating to Items recognised In other Comprehensive Income (C) 

Income tax expense for the vear (A+B..C) 

(b) Deferred tax 

Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2022 Marth 31, 2021 
INR INR 

1,740.28 1,044.15 

10.06 65.46 

1,750.34 1,109.60 

65.58 25.09 

(93.72) 382.14 

(28.16) 407.23 

13,22) (4.09) 

1,725.41 1,520.93 

The major components of deferred tax (liabilities) arising on account of timing differences for the year ended March 31. 2022: 

Particulars Net balance Recognised in Recognised 
March 31, 2021 profit or loss inOCI 

Deferred tax assets 
Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in the 75.63 13.83 (3.22) 
current year but allowed for tax purposes on payment basis 

Impact of provision for expected cred it loss on loans 838.42 (62.70) 

Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation/amonization 
2.02 8.70 charged for the financial reporting 

Impact of leases under Ind AS 116 7.04 (4.22) 

EIR impact of financial asssets and liabilities 60.29 (22.89) 

Share based payment 7.72 (1.52) 
Others 

(A) 991.12 (68.801 (3.22} 

Deferred tax liabilities 
Impact of amortisation of anciallary borrowing cost 119.00 1.56 
EIR impact of financial asssets and liabilities 86.49 (46.51) 

Impact of direct assignment and securitisaton transactions 821.63 (73.88) 
Interest income recognised on stage 3 loans 74.43 28.64 
Others 6.24 (3.53) 

(8) 1,107.79 (93.72 
Deferred tax assets (net) (A~B) 1116.67) 24.92 (3.22) 

The major components of deferred tax {liabilities) arising on account of timing differences for the year ended March 31, 2021: 

Particulars Net balance Recocnised in Recognised 
March 31, 2020 profit or loss lnOCI 

Deferred tax assets 
Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in the 52.47 27.23 (4 .07) 
current year but allowed for tax purposes on payment basis 

Impact of provision for expected credit loss on loans 906.93 (68.51) 

Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation/amortization 
charged for the financial reponing 2.49 (0.47) 

Impact of leases under Ind AS 116 2.08 4.96 

EIR impact of financial asssets and liabilities 51.82 8.47 

Share based payment 4.42 3.30 
Others 4.14 (4.14) 

(A) 1,024.35 (29.16 (4.07 
Deferred ta liabilities 
Impact of amortisation of anciallary borrowing cost 130.25 (11.25) 

Remeasurement of defined benefit plan 0.57 (0.57) 
EIR impact of financial asssets and liabilities 40.49 46.00 
Impact of direct assignment and securitisaton transactions 498.77 322.86 
Interest income recognised on stage 3 loans 49.52 24.91 
Others 6.05 0.19 

18) 725.65 382.14 
Deferred tax assets (net) (A-Bl 298.70 (411.30) (4 .07) 

Net balance 
March 31, 2022 

86.24 

775.72 

10.72 

2.82 

37.40 

6.20 

919.10 

120.56 

39.98 
747.75 

103.07 

2.71 

1,014.07 
(94.97) 

Net balance 
March 31, 2021 

75.63 

838.42 

2.02 

7.04 

60.29 

7.72 

991.12 

119.00 

86.49 

821.63 
74.43 

6.24 

1,107.79 
(116.67) 



IKF Finance Limited 
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2022 
(Currency: INR in lakhs) 

(c} Reconciliation of effective tax rate 

Year ended 
Particulars March 31, 2022 

INR 
Profit before tax as per Staiement of profit and loss (A) 6,838.43 
Applicable income tax rate 25.17% 
Expected Income Tax Expense (Bl 1,721.10 

Tax effect of: 
Effect of income exempt from tax (0.55) 
Effect of expenses/provisions not deductible in determining taxable profit 39.56 

Effect of differential tax rate 
Adjustment related to tax of prior years 10.06 
Others (44.77) 

Income tax expense 1,725.42 

Year ended 

March 31, 2021 
INR 

5,311.09 
25.17% 

1,336.70 

(0.45) 
64.15 

65.46 
55.07 

1,520.93 
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30 Employee Benefits 

a. Defined contribution plan • provident funds 
In accordance with Employees' Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund, a defined 

contribution plan, in which, both the employee and the Company contribute monthly at a determined rate. These contributions are made to a recognized provident fund administered 

by Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. The employees contribute 12% of their basic salary and the Company contributes an equal amount. 

The Company recognised INR 165.42 lakhs (PY: INR 130.81 lakhs) for year ended March 31, 2022, for provident fund and other contributions in the Statement of profit and loss. 

b. Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity 

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan (unfunded). Every employee who has completed five years or more of service is eligible for gratuity on cessation of employment and it 

is computed at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service subject to limit of INR 20 lakhs as per The Payment of Gratuity Act. 1972. 

The following tables summarizes the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss and the funded status and amounts recognized in the Balance 

Sheet for the gratuity plan. 

Particulars 
As at Asat 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Present value of obligation (A) 152.37 127.59 

Fair Value of plan assets (B) 

Present value of obligation (A- B) 152.37 127.59 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Obligation expected to be settled in the next 12 months 10.64 7.95 

Obligation expected to be settled beyond next 12 months 141.73 119.64 

Movement In net defined benefit (asset) liabil ity 

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (asset) liability and its components: 

Particulars 
Defined Benefit Obligat ion Fair Value of plan assets Net defined benefit (asset) liability 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Opening balance 127.59 108.30 127.59 108.30 

Current service cost 40.84 32.01 40.84 32.01 

Past service cost 

Interest cost (income) 8.42 7.26 8.42 7.26 

Defined benefit cost included in P&L 49.26 39.27 49.27 39.27 

Other comprehensive Income 

Remeasurement loss (gain} due to: 

Demographic assumptions 

Financial assumption (3.69) (0.70) 13.69) (0 .70) 

Experience adjustments (9.11) (15.50) 19.11) (15.50) 

Total remeasurements in OCI (12.80) (16.20) 112.80) (16.20) 

Others 

Benefits pi1id (11.67) (3.79) (11.67) (3.79) 

Closing balance 152.38 127.59 152.38 127.59 

Actuarial assumptions: 

The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date: 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

IKF FINANCE LIMITED 

Discount rate 7.33% 6.91% 

Salary escalation rate 6.00% 6.00% 

Withdrawal/attrition rate (based on categories) 9.00% 9.00% 

Mortality rate (as% of IALM 12012-14) Ult. Mortality Table) 100.00% 100.00% 

Disability rate 0.00% 0.00% 

Expected weighted average remaining working lives of employees 24.90 years 23.08 years 

IKF HOME FINANCE LIMITED 

Discount rate 7.47% 6.91% 

Salary escalation rate 5.00% 5.00% 

Withdrawal/attrition rate (based on categories) 5.95% 5.95% 

Mortality rate (as% of IALM (2012-14) Ult. Mortality Table) 100.00% 100.00% 

Disability rate 0.00% 0.1)0% 

Expected weighted average remaining working lives o f employees 25.08 years 24.64 years 
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Notes: 
a) The discount rate indicated above reflects the estimated timing and currency of benefit payments. It is based on the yields/ rates available on applicable bonds as on the current 

valuation date. 

b} The salary growth rate indicated above is the Company's best estimate of an increase in salary of the employees in future years, determined considering the general trend in 

inflation, seniority, promotions, past experience and other relevant factors such as demand and supply in employment market, etc. 

c) Attrition rate indicated above represents the Company's best estimate of employee turnover in future (other than on account of retirement, death or disablement) determined 

considering various factors such as nature of business, retention policy, industry factors, past experience, etc. 

Sensitivity analysis: 

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation 

by the amounts shown below. 

Particulars 
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease 

Salary escalation Rate(+/· 1%) 164.50 141.45 137.83 118.41 
IKF Finance 7.20% -6.50% 7.40% -6.70% 
IKF Home Finance 11.10% -9.70% 12.00% ·10.40% 

Discount Rate(+/· 1%) 141.61 164.64 118.65 137.76 

IKF Finance ·6.60% 7.50% -6.60% 7.40% 
IKF Home Finance •9.00% 10.40% -9.80% 11.40% 

Withdrawal Rate(+/· 1%) 152.67 151.93 127.30 127.81 

IKF Finance 0.20% -0.20% -0.20% 0.20% 
IKF Home Finance 0.20% -0.50% 0.20% •0.40% 

The Sensitivity is performed on the defined benefit obligation at the respective valuation date by modifying one parameter whilst retaining other parameters constant. There are no 

changes from the previous year to the methods and assumptions underlying the sensitivity analyses. 

Expected future contributions 

The Best Estimate Contribution for the Company during the next year would be INR Nil 

Expected cash flow for following years· 

Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligat ions 

Year 1 10.64 
Year 2 13.25 
Year 3 12.98 
Year4 25.49 
YearS 15.54 
Year 6 14.78 
Year 7 14.07 
Year8 11.36 
Year9 11.37 
Year 10 13.10 
The weighted average duration of the def med benefit obhgat1on for IKF Finance ,s 8.03 (for IKF Home Finance is 10.89) 

c. Compensated absences : 

The Company provides for accumulated compensated absences as at the balance sheet date using projected unit credit method based on actuarial valuation. 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Present value of unfunded obligation 194.71 175.63 

Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 47.07 66.99 
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31 Earnings per share 

Particulars 

Profit for the year 

Weighted average number of equity shares used in calculating basic earnings per share 

Effect of potential dilutive Equity Shares on account of unexercised employee stock options 

Weighted average number of equity shares and potential equity shares used in calculating 

diluted earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share 

Diluted earnings per share 

32 Segm ent Reporting 

As at Asat 
M arch 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

5,113.01 3,790.16 

516.78 502.80 

0.23 0.33 

517.01 503.13 

9.89 7.54 

9.89 7.53 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") of 
the Company. The COOM, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as 
the Promoters of the Company. The Company operates only in one Business Segment i.e. lending, since the nature of the loans are exposed to 

similar risks and return profiles, hence they are collectively operating under a single segment. Accordingly the Company does not have any 

reportable Segments as per Indian Accounting Standard 108 "Operating Segments". 
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33 Transfer of financial assets 

Transfer of financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety 

(i) Securitisations: 

The Company uses securitisat ions as a source of finance. Such transactions generally result in the transfer of contractual cash flows from 

portfolios of financial assets to holders of issued debt securities. Securitisation has resulted in the continued recognition of the securitised 
assets. 

The table below outlines the carrying amounts and fair values of all financial assets transferred that are not derecognised in their entirety 

and associated liabilities. 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Carrying amount of transferred assets measured at amortised cost 1,195.10 13,444.97 

Carrying amount of associated liabilities 871.72 6,811.66 

The carrying amount of above assets and liabilities is a reasonable approximation of t heir fair values. 

Transfer of financial assets which qualify for derecognition in their entirety 

(i) Assignment transaction 

The Company has sold loans and advances measured at amortised cost under assignment deals, as a source of finance. As per the terms of 
these deals, since substantial risk and rewards related to these assets were transferred to the buyer, the assets have been derecognised 

from the Company's balance sheet . 

The gain arising on said transactions are recorded upfront by discounting the future cash flows accruing in the form of differential interest 
on such assigned loan to their present values. 

The table below summarises the carrying amount of the Excess Interest Spread (EIS) receivable on above transaction which are 

de recognised 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Carrying amount of EIS receivable 2,719.59 1,508.93 

e, O & Co 

I ' 

~~~ _ w 
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34 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities 

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled. 

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 

Particulars Within 12 Within 12 
After 12 months Total 

months 
After 12 months 

months 

ASSETS 

Financial assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 9,664.31 9,664.31 14,474.42 
Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents 1,274.79 1,2S8.86 2,533.65 2,813.43 1,351.39 
Receivables 

(I) Trade receivables 28.35 28.35 15.88 
(II) Other receivables 

Loans 66,607.85 1,22,602.27 1,89,210.12 60,587.70 98,196.97 
Investments 
Other Financial assets 1,026.82 2,166.56 3,193.40 740.37 1,277.16 
Sub total 78,602.13 1,26,027.69 2,04,629.83 78,631.80 1,00,825.51 

Non-financial assets 
Current Tax assets (Net) 183.04 17.91 200.95 217.94 . 
Deferred Tax assets (Net) 70.34 70.34 
Investment Property . 114.31 114.31 6.47 
Property, plant and equipment . 343.00 343.00 . 319.43 
Right to Use Assets 19.67 19.67 45.70 
Other intangible assets 175.97 175.97 207.32 
Other non-financial assets 10.55 1,069.67 1,080.22 43.62 364.01 
Sub total 193.59 1,810.86 2,004.46 261.56 942.94 

Total assets 78,795.72 1,27,838.55 2,06,634.28 78,893.36 1,0l,768.4S 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

LIABILITIES 
Financial liabilities 
Derivative Financial Instruments 58.68 . 58.68 . 
Payables 
(I) Trade payables and Other payables 

(i) total outstanding dues of creditors of micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 

(ii} total outstanding dues of creditors other than 7.09 7.09 23.52 
micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Debt Securities 4,532.76 19,275.16 23,807.92 21,857.60 21,353.16 
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities} 72,002.86 60,136.21 1,32,139.08 54,503.45 37,645.24 

Subordinated Liabilities 1,537.37 4,466.08 6,003.45 37.70 5,949.09 
Other Financial liabilities 2,873.04 229.96 3,103.00 3,290.91 292.76 
Sub total 81,011.80 84,107.42 1,65,119.22 79,713.18 65,240.25 

Non-Financial liabilities 
Current tax liabilities (Net} . 71.90 
Provisions 31.80 313.55 345.34 27.24 275.99 
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 165.35 165.35 116.69 
Other non-financial liabilities 157.27 157.27 148.76 
Sub total 189.07 478.89 667.96 247.90 392.68 
Total liabilities 81,200.87 84,586.31 1,65,787.18 79,961.08 65,632.93 

Total 

14,474.42 
4,164.82 

15.88 

1.58, 784.68 

2,017.53 
1, 79,457.33 

217.94 

6.47 
319.43 
45.70 

207.32 
407.63 

1,204.50 
1,80,661.82 

23.52 

43,210.76 
92,148.70 

5,986.79 
3,583.67 

1,44,953.43 

71.90 
303.23 
116.69 
148.76 
640.58 

1,45,594.01 
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35 Changes in liabilities arising from financi ng activities 

Particulars 
As at Cash Flows 

March 31, 2021 (net) 

Subordinated liabilities 5,986.81 
Debt securities 43,210.76 (17,950.00) 

Borrowing other than debt securities 92,148.70 50,018.55 
1,41,346.26 32,068.55 

Particulars 
As at Cash Flows 

March 31, 2020 (net) 

Subordinated liabilities 6,450.76 (500.00) 

Debt securities 6,109.77 36,200.00 

Borrowing other than debt securities 1,02,752.13 (1,551.28) 

1,15,312.66 34,148.72 

Others As at 
(net)* March 31, 2022 

16.65 6,003.46 

(1,452.85) 23,807.91 
(10,028.18) 1,32,139.07 
(11,464.38) 1,61,950.44 

Others As at 
(net)* March 31, 2021 

36.04 5,986.81 

900.98 43,210.76 

(9,052.15) 92,148.70 

(8,115.13) 1,41,346.26 

• Others column includes the effect of accrued but not paid interest on borrowing, amortisation of processing fees and cash 

flows from securitisation etc. 
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36 Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) 

The Company had granted 5,62,860 Equity shares (face value of INR 10/- each) under Employee Stock Option Plan 2019 on June 11, 2019 to t he employees o f IKF Finance 

Limited. The shares will vest gradually and vesting of these shares is dependent on continued employment with the company. 

A. Expenses arising from share-based payment t ransactions 

Total expenses arising from equity - settled share-based payment transaction recognised in profit or loss as part of employee benefit expense for the year ended March 31, 

2022 is INR (6.03) lakhs (March 31, 2021 - INR 13.09 lakhs). 

B. Movement during the year 

The following table illustrates the number and w eighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and movements in, share options during the year: 

Particulars 
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2022 As at Ma rch 31, 2021 

Number WAEP Number 

Outstanding at 1 April 3,56,930.00 120.00 4,75,550.00 

Granted during the year 

Forfeited during the year 1,50,930.00 120.00 1,18,620.00 

Exercised during the year 

Expired during the year 

Outstanding at 31 March 2,06,000.00 120.00 3,56,930.00 

Exercisable at 31 March 92,700.00 120.00 71,386.00 

No Share options granted during the year. No options were vested or exercised during the year. 

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding as at March 31, 2022 is 0.58 years (March 31, 2021: 1.25 years). 

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year ending March 31, 2020 was 14.79 

C. Fair value of options granted 

As at March 31, 2021 

WAEP 

120.00 

120.00 

120.00 

120.00 

The weighted average fair value of options grant ed during the year ending March 31, 2020 w as 14. 79. The fair value of opt ions was determined using the Black Scholes Model 

using the following inputs as follows : 

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at M arch 31, 2021 

Weighted average fair values at the measurement date 14.79 14.79 

Expected volat ility (%) 0.36% 0.36% 

Risk-free interest rate (%) 4.50% 4.50% 

Expected life of share options/SARs (years) 1.30 years to 4.30 years 1.30 years to 4.30 years 

Weighted average share price (INR) 120.00 120.00 

The expected price volatility is based on the histor ic volatility (based on the remaining life of the options), adjusted for any expected changes to future volatilit y due to publicly 

available information. 
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37 Contingent liabilit ies and commitments 

In the ordinary course of business, the Company faces claims and assertions by various parties. The Company assesses such claims and assertions and monitors 

the legal environment on an ongoing basis, with the assistance of external legal counsel, wherever necessary. The Company records a liability for any claims 
where a potential loss is probable and capable of being estimated and discloses such matters in its financial statements, if material. For potential losses that are 

considered possible, but not probable, the Company provides disclosure in the financial statements but does not record a liability in its accounts unless the loss 
becomes probable. 

The Company believes that the outcome of these proceedings will not have a materially adverse effect on the Company's financial position and results oi 
operations. 

37.1 Cont ingent Liability 

There are no Contingent Liabilities as on March 31, 2022 (March 31, 2021: INR 0.) 

37.2 Commit ment 

There are no commitment as on March 31, 2022 (March 31, 2021: INR 0.) 
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38 Leases 

Company as a Lessee 

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for office spaces. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is. 
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract 
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:(i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substant ially all 

of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. 

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU") and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee. 
except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) . For these short-term leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a 

straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is 

reasonably certain that they will be exercised. 

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the 

commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease in~entives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment 

losses. 

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use 

assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment 

testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use} is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not genera te 

cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset 
belongs. 

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit 1n the 

lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding 

adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option. 

Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets 
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 

Opening 45.71 79.73 

Additions 4.92 23.22 
Deletion (0.78) (8.14) 

Depreciation (30.18) (49.10) 
Closing Balance 19.67 45.71 

The following is the movement in lease liabilities : 
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 
Balance at the beginning 48.89 86.30 
Additions 4.80 22 S4 
Finance cost accrued during the period 3.79 6.35 
Payment of lease liabilities (36.39) (66.30) 

Balance at the end 21.09 48.89 

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis: 
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 

Less than 3 months 3.74 11.77 

Over 3 months & upto 6 months 3.93 11 .81 
Over 6 months & upto 1 year 5.68 23.61 
Over 1 year & upto 3 years 14.72 S6.20 
Over 3 years 6.41 20.40 

The following are the amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss· 
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 30.19 49.10 
Interest expense on lease liabilities 3.79 6.35 
Expense relating to short-term leases 241.29 183.12 
Total amount recognised in profit or loss ' 275.27 238.57 

Future Commitments: 

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 

Future undiscounted lease payments for which the leases have not yet commenced 

Extension/ Termination Options: 

Some of the leases contain extension and termination options. Such options are taken into account in the determination of the lease term only if extension or non-termination can 

be assumed with reasonable certainty. On this basis, there were no such amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2021. 
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39 Capital Management 

For the purpose of the Group's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves 

attributable to the equity holders of the Group. The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to maximise the shareholder 

value. The Group monitors capital in accordance with the capital adequacy rat io prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India ("RBI")/ National 

Housing Bank ("NHB") as applicable. 



IKF Finance Limited 
Notes forming part of Consolidated Fin;mcial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2022 
(Currency: INR in lakhs) 

40 Fair Value Measurement : 

A. Valuation Principles 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the 
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price), regardless of whether thi!lt price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation technique. In order to 

show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques: 

Level 1 - Valuation technique using quoted market price: financial instruments with quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets that Company can access at the 
measurement date. 

level 2 - Valuation technique using observable inputs: Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly or indirectly observable 
mark.et data available over the entire pe riod of the instrument's life. 

Level 3 -Valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs: Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the measurement as whole. 

8 . Fair value of financial instrument not measured at fair va lue: 

The table below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair values of the Company's financial instruments that are not carried at fair value in the financial 
statements. This table does not include the fair values of non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities. 

Carrying value Fa ir value 
Particulars Level Asal As at As at As at 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 
Financial Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 1 9,664.31 14,474.42 9,664.31 14,474.42 
Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents 1 2,533.65 4,164.82 2,533.65 4,164.82 
Trade receivables 3 28.35 15.87 28.35 15.87 
Loans 3 1,89,210.12 1,58, 784.68 1.93,909.76 1.63,371.04 
Rent and utility deposits 3 299.17 175.11 299.17 175.11 
EIS receivable 3 2,719.59 1,508.93 2,719.59 1,508.93 
Other financial assets 3 174.64 333.50 174.64 333.50 

2,04,629.83 1,79,457.33 2,09,329.47 1,84,043.69 
Financial Liabilities 
Derivative financial instruments 3 58.68 58.68 
Trade Payables 3 7.09 23.52 7.09 23.52 
Debt securities 3 23,807.91 43,210.76 24,127.77 44,241.40 

Borrowings (other than debt securities) 3 1,32,139.07 92,148.69 1.32,136.20 92,214.74 
Subordinated Liabilities 3 6,003.45 S,986.79 6,099.99 6,045.49 
Other financial liabilities 3 3,103.00 3,583.67 3,103.00 3,583.67 

Total Financial liabilities 1,65,119.19 1,44,953.43 1,65,532.73 1,46,108.81 

Valuation Methodologies of Financial Instruments not measured at fair value 
Below are the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for the above financial instruments which are not recorded and measured at fair value in the 
Company's financial statements. These fair values were calculated for disclosure purposes only. The below methodologies and assumptions relate only to the instruments in the 
above tables and, as such, may differ from the techniques and assumptions explained in notes. 

Short Term Financial Assets and Uabllities 
For financial assets and financial liabilit ies that have a short-term maturity (less than twelve months). the carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of their fair value. Such 
instruments include: cash and cash equivalents, bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, rent and utility deposits and other financial liabilities. 

loans and advances to customers 
The fair values of loans are estimated by discounted cash flow models based on contractual cash nows using actual or estimated yields. 

Borrowings other than debt securities, Debt securities and Subordinated liabilities 
The fair value of issued debt is estimated by a discounted cash now model incorporating the Company's own credit risk. 

EIS receivable 
EIS receivable is calculated by discounting the contractual future cash flows. The carrying value closely approximates its fair value. 

C. The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy 

Particulars Level 
Asat As at 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 
Assets measured at fair value on recurring basis 
Assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 
Investments 

Debt securities 
Certificate of deposits 

Total assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis (a) 
Assets measured at fair value on a non recurring basis 
Assets held for sale 

Total assets measured at fair value on a non recurring basis (b} 
Total assets measured at fa ir va lue (a)+(b) 

Liabilities m easured at fair value through profit or loss 
Derivative financial instruments 

Fonuard contracts and currency swaps 3 3.35 
Interest rate swaps 

Total liabilities measured at fair value through profit o r loss 3.35 
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41 Risk management 
Risk is an integral part of the Company's business and sound risk management is critical to the success. As a financial intermediary, the Company ls exposed to risks that are 

particular to its lending and the environment within which it operates and primarily includes credit, liquidity and market risks. The Board of Directors of the Company are 

responsible for the overall risk management approach and for approving the risk management strategies and principles. The Company has a risk management policy which 

covers all the risk associated with its assets and liabilities. 

41.1 Introduction and Risk Profile 

Risk management and mitigation 

The Company's risks are measured using a method that reflects both the expected loss likely to arise in normal circumstances and unexpected losses, which are an estimate 
of the ultimate actual loss. The models make use of probabilities derived from historical experience, adjusted to reflect the economic environment, as necessary. 

The Company's policy is to measure and monitor the overall risk•bearing capacity in relation to t he aggregate risk exposure across all risk types and activities. 

It is the Company's policy to ensure that a robust risk awareness is embedded in its organisational risk culture. Employees are expected to take ownership and be 

accountable for the risks the Company is exposed to that they decide to take on. The Company's continuous training and development emphasises that employees are made 
aware of the Company's risk appetite and they are supported in their roles and responsibilities to monitor and keep their exposure to risk within the Company's risk appetite 

limits. 

The Company is generally exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk, prepayment risk and operational risk. 

41.2 Credit Risk 
Credit risk is the risk t hat the Company will incur a loss because its customers or counterparties fail to discharge their contractual obligations. The Company manages and 
controls credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing to accept for individual counterparties and for geographical concentrations, and by monitoring 

exposures in relation to such limits. 
Credit risk is monitored by the credit department of the Company. It is their responsibility to review and manage credit risk. Credit risk consists of line credit managers who 
are responsible for their business lines and manage specific portfolios and experts who support both the line credit manager, as well as the business with tools li ke credit risk 

systems, policies, models and reporting. 
The credit quality review process aims to allow the Company to assess the potential loss as a result of the risks to which it is exposed and take corrective actions. 

Impairment assessment 
The references below show where the Company's impairment assessment and measurement approach is set out in this report. It should be read in con1unct1on with the 

summary of significant accounting policies. 

Definition of default and cure 
The Company considers a financial instrument as defaulted and t herefore Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) calculations in all cases when the borrower 

becomes more than 3 months past due on its contractual payments. 

The stai:?.inl? criteria used bv the Comoanv is as below· 

Loans months oast due Staee 
Upto 1 month Stage 1 

Between 1 month to 3 months Stage 2 

More than 3 months Sta•e 3 

The Company considers a financial instrument defaulted and therefore Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECL calculations in all cases when the borrower becomes past due for 

more than 3 months on its contractual payments. 

It is the Company's policy to consider a financial instrument as 'cured' and therefore re-classified out of Stage 3 when the due amount have been paid. The decision whether 

to classify an asset as Stage 2 or Stage 1 once cured depends on the updated credit grade, at the time of the cure, and whether this indicates there has been a significant 

increase in credit risk compared to initia l recognition. 

Exposure at default (EAD) 

The exposure at default (EAD) represents the gross carrying amount of the financial instruments subject to the impairment calculation, addressing both the ability to increase 

its exposure while approaching default and potential early repayments too. 

To calculate the EAD for a Stage 1 loan, the Company assesses the possible default events within 12 months for the calculation of the 12 months ECL. 
For Stage 2 and Stage 3 financial assets, the exposure at default is considered for events over the lifetime of the instruments. 
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Probability of default (PD) 
The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. To calculate the ECL for a Stage 1 loan, the Company assesses the possible 
default events within 12 months for the calculation of the 12month ECL. For Stage 2 and Stage 3 financial assets, the exposure at default is considered for events over the 

lifetime of the instruments. The Company uses historical information wherever available to determine PO 

Loss given Default (LGD) 
LGD is the estimated loss that the Company might bear if the borrower defaults. The Company determines its recovery {net present value) by analysing the recovery trends, 

borrower rating, collateral value and expected proceeds from sale of asset. 

lGD Rates have been computed internally based on the discounted recoveries in defaulted accounts that are closed/ written off/ repossessed and upgraded during the year. 

When estimating ECLs on a collective basis for a group of similar assets, the Company applies the same principles for assessing whether there has been a significant increase 

in credit risk since initial recognition. 

Significant Increase In credit risk 
The Company continuously monitors all assets subject to ECls in o rder to determine whether an instrument or a portfolio of instruments is subject to 12 month ECL or 

lifetime ECL. The Company assesses whether there has been an event which could cause a significantly increase in the credit risk of the underlying asset or t he customers 

ability to pay and accordingly change the 12 month ECl to a lifetime ECL 

If contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, the credit risk is deemed to have increased significantly since initial recognition. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 
Company's loan portfolio is predominantly to finance commercial vehicle loans. The Company manages concentration of risk primarily by geographical region. The following 

tables show the region-wise concentrations of net terms loans. 

Geography March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

West 45,578.55 42,322.24 

Central 5,531.19 6,492.54 

South 1,41,712.59 1,13,790.40 

1,92,822.33 1,62,605.18 

Quantitative Information of Collateral 
Net value of total term loans to value of collateral is as follows: 

As at March 31, 2022 
Upto 50% 51%-70% 

loan to value 

More than 70% Total 

Cars & Muvs 1,224.12 19,288.11 10,382.32 30,894.55 

Commercial Vehicles 2,350.49 28,154.20 14,292.21 44,796.91 

Construction Equipment 3,477.80 14,367.04 12,146.46 29,991.30 

Three Wheeler 48.26 9,201.86 1,808.16 11,058.28 

Tractor 203.45 2,018.47 381.49 2,603.41 

Two Wheeler 1,139.12 1,041.94 772.97 2,954.04 

5ME 6,491.94 4,304.85 26,213.51 37,010.29 

Home loans 13,260.55 7,638.59 5,661.21 26,560.34 

loans Against Property 5,066.76 1,886.45 6,953.21 

Total 33,262.49 87,901.51 71,658.33 1,92,822.33 
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AJ at March 31, 2021 
Loan to value 

Upto 50% 51%-70% More than 70% 

Cars& Muvs 1,475.04 17,088.34 10,415.64 

Commercial Vehicles 2,846.46 26,384.55 17,298.21 

Construction Equipment 2,629.76 12,684.50 9,532.23 

Three Wheeler 198.06 3,845.42 3,522.54 

Tractor 249.65 1,830.33 452.67 

Two Wheeler 2,546.55 1,141.39 5,484.31 

SME 5,558.32 4,831.23 13,338.84 

Home loans 7,423.24 5,308.61 1,648.45 

Loans Against Property 3,423.64 1,447.19 

Total 26,350.71 74,561.58 61,692.88 

41.3 Liquidity Risk 

Total 

28,979.02 
46,529.22 

24,846.49 

7,566.02 
2,532.65 
9,172.25 

23,728.39 

14,380.31 

4,870.83 
1,62,605.18 

In assessing the Company's liquidity position, consideration shall be given to: (1) present and anticipated asset quality (2) present and future earnings capacity (3) historical 

funding requirements (4) current liquidity position (5) anticipated future funding needs, and (6) sources of funds. The Company maintains a portfolio of marketable assets 
that are assumed to be easily liquidated and undrawn cash credit limits which can be used in the event of an unforeseen interruption in cash flow. The Company also enters 
into securitization deals (direct assignment as well as pass through certificates) o f their loan portfolio, the funding from which can be accessed to meet liquidity needs. Net 

liquid assets consist of cash and short-term bank deposits, Borrowings from banks and financial institutions and issue of Non convertible debentures are considered as 

important sources of funds to finance lending to customers. 

Analysis of financial assets and llabllitles by remaining contractual maturities: 

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company's financial assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2022. 

less than 3 months Over 3 months Over 6 Over 1 year & Over 3 years Total 

Particulars &upto6 months & upto 3 years 

months uoto 1 vear 

Financial assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 9,664.31 9,664.31 

Bank Balance other than included in (a} above 267.49 906.32 122.85 999.25 325.00 2,620.91 

Trade receivables 28.35 28.35 

loans 33,001.98 19,577.19 34,008.99 99,087.66 45,377.40 2,31,053.21 

Investments 6,252.92 6,252.92 

Other financial assets 548.52 304.80 465.72 507.25 1,690.74 3,517.03 

Total undiscounted financial assets 43,510.65 20,788.31 34,597.56 1,00,594.16 53,646.06 2,53,136.73 

Financial liabilities 
Derivative Financial Instruments 58.68 58.68 

Trade payables 8.84 8.84 

Other payables 

Subordinated liabilities 198.70 1,696.45 304.02 1,221.46 5,084.17 8,504.80 

Debt securities 1,949.37 1,210.81 2,640.40 20,085.06 25,885.64 

Borrowings (other than debt securities) 14,925.73 11,994.62 52,883.78 54,335.51 10,540.54 1,44,680.17 

Deposits 

Other financial liabilities 2,787.82 18.60 77.09 275.92 8.48 3,167.90 

Total undiscounted financial liabi lities 19,929.14 14,920.48 55,905.29 75,917.95 15,633.19 1,82,306.03 

Net undisc:ounted financial as5ets / (liabilities) 23,581.51 5,867.83 (21,307.73) 24,676.21 38,012.87 70,830.70 

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company's financial assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2021. 

Less than 3 months Over 3 months Over6 Over 1 year & Over 3 years Total 

Particulars & upto 6 months & upto 3 years 

months unto 1 vear 

Financial assets 

cash and cash equivalents 11,793.28 11,793.28 

Bank Balance other than included in (a) above 271.56 1,935.22 743.51 1,192.56 4.142.85 

Trade receivables 49.39 49.39 

loans 29,462.88 18,308.32 33,152.96 83,990.23 19.975.91 1,84,890.30 

Investments 4.525.10 4,525.10 

Other financial assets 449.50 100.40 149.38 164.06 147.92 1,011.26 

Total undiscounted financial assets 42,026.61 20,343.94 34,045.85 85,346.85 24,648.93 2,06,412.18 

Financial liabilities 

Trade payables 
Other payables 

Subordinated liabilities 201.19 203.52 395.54 2,820.05 5,693.40 9,313.70 

Debt securities 1,625.02 1,827.57 21,283.72 13,376.58 38,112.89 

Borrowings (other than debt securities) 12,291.50 9,611.61 36,989.50 29,768.40 8,285.65 96,946.66 

Deposits 

Other financial liabilities 2,254.43 38.07 109.12 361.53 2,763.15 

Total undisc:ounted financial liabilities 16,372.14 11,680.77 58,777.88 46,326.56 13,979.05 1,47 ,136.40 

Net undiscounted financial assets/ (liabilities) 25,654.47 8,663.17 (24,732.03) 39,020.29 10,669.88 59,275.78 
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The table below shows the contractual expiry by maturity of the Company's contingent liabilities and commitments. Each undrawn loan commitment is included in the time 

band containing the earliest date it can be drawn down. 

On demand Less than 3 Over 3 Over6 Over 1 year Over 3 years 

Particulars 
months months & months& & upto 3 

upto 6 months upto 1 year years 

As at March 31, 2022 

Guarantees and counter guarantees 

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be 

executed on caoltal account. net of advances 
Total commitments 

As at March 31, 2021 
Guarantees and counter guarantees 
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be 

executed on caoital account. net of advances 
Total commitments 

41.4 Market Risk 

Market Risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market factor. Such changes in the values of 
financial instruments may result from changes in the interest rates, credit, liquidity, and other market changes. The objective of market risk management Is to avoid excessive 

exposure of our earnings and equity to loss and reduce our exposure to the volatility inherent In financial instruments. There are broadly two types of market risks: (1) 

Interest rate risk, and (2) Price risk. The Company has not made investments In quoted equity instruments or other quoted investments and hence is not exposed to Equity 
price risk. Interest rate risk is discussed below: 

Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company 1s sub1ect 

to Interest rate risk, primarily since it lends to customers at fixed rates and for maturity periods shorter than the funding sources. 

The Company has taken borrowings at floating rates gives rise to Interest rate risk. Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors beyond control, including the monetary 

policies of the Reserve Bank of India, deregulation of the financial sector in India, domestic and international economic and political conditions, inflation and other factors . In 

order to manage Interest rate risk, the Company seek to optimize borrowing profile between short~term and long4 term loans. The Company adopts fundmg strategies to 
ensure diversified resource-raising options to minimize cost and maximize stability of funds. Assets and liabilities are categorized into various time buckets based on their 

maturities. The Interest Rate Risk is mitigated by availing funds at very competitive rates through diversified borrowings and for different tenors. 

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the interest rates on the portion of borrowings affected. With all other variables held 

constant, the profit before taxes affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings are as follows: 

Asat Asat 
Impact on Profit before taxes March 31, March 31, 

2022 2021 

On Floating Rate Borrowings: 

1% increase In interest rates (550.43) (377.29) 

1% decrease in Interest rates 550.22 377.26 

41.5 Prepayment risk 

Prepayment risk is the risk that the Company will incur a financial loss because its customers and counterparties repay or request repayment earlier or later than expected, 

such as fixed rate loans like ours when interest rates fall. 

41.6 Operational and business risk 

Operational risk Is the risk of loss arising from systems failure, human error, fraud or external events. When controls fail to operate effectively, operational risks can cause 
damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implicat ions, or lead to financial loss. The Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but it endeavours to 

manage these risks through a control framework and by monitoring and responding to potential risks. Controls include effective segregation of duties, access, authorisation 

and reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes, such as the use of internal audit. 

41.7 Currency Risk 

The Company is exposed to currency risk on account of its borrowings in foreign currency. The fluctuation currency of the Company is Indian Rupee. The Companv uses 

forward exchange contracts to hedge its currency risk, most with a maturity of less than one year from the reporting date. 

The Company does not use derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes. 
Following are the forward contracts to hedge the foreign exchange rate as March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 

Asat As at 

Particulars purpose Currency Cross Currency March 31, March 31, 

2022 2021 
Forward Conracts Term Loan USO INR 3 NA 
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42 Related Party Disclosure 

a. Name of related party and nature of relationship: 

Enterprises having a significant influence 

Subsidiary 

Enterprises in which directors are interested 

India Business Excellence Fund -IIA 

Vistra ITCL (india) limied (formerly known as IL and FS trust Company limited) 

(Trustee of Business Excellence Trust -II - India Business Excellence Fund - II) 

IKF Home Finance limited 
(formerly known as IKF Housing Finance Private limited) 

SVR Finance & Leasing Privat e limited 

Enterprises significantly influenced by Key M anagement IKF lnfratech Private limited 

Personnel and their relatives 

Relative of Key Management Personnel 

Key M anagement Personnel (KMP) 

Mrs. D. Vasantha Lakshmi - Managing Director (IKF Home Finance limited) 

Mr. V. Raghu Ram 

Mr. Sinha Satyanand Chunduri 

Mrs. Durga Rani Chunduri 

M r V.G.K.Prasad - Chairman 

Mrs. V. Indira Devi - Whole time Director 

Mrs. K Vasumathi Devi - Managing Director 

Mr.Sreepal Gulabchand Jain-Chief Financial Officer 

Mr. Ch.Sreenivasa Rao - Company Secretary 
Mr. Vishal Kumar Joshi- Company Secretary (IKF Home Finance limited) 
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42 Related Party Disclosure (continued) 
b. Transaction with related parties~ 

Name of related party 

Key management personnel 

Mr.VG K Prasad 

Mrs. V Indira Devi 

Mrs.K.Vasumathl Devi 

Mr.Srecpal Gulabchand Jain 
Mr. Vishal Kumar Joshi 

Mr.Ch.Sreenivasa Rao 

Nature of transaction 

Rent paid 

Director's remuneration 
Director Commission Payable 
Rent deposit given 
Advance Received 
Interest paid on advance 
Share Capital (INR 10/- Paid up) 

Part Iv oald uo shares !Rs 10 Paid Up) • • 

Premium on partly paid up shares •• 
Partly paid up shares (Rs 5.00 Paid Uol In IKF Home Finance 
Unsecured Loan In IKF Home Finance 
Rent paid 
Director's remuneration 

Director Commission Payable 
Rent deposit given 

Share Capital (INR 10/- Paid up) 

Partly paid up shares (Rs 10 Paid Up) • • 

Premium Received on Allotment or Partlv Paid uo Shares •• 
Partly paid up shares (Rs 5.00 Paid Up) in IKF Home Finance 

Unsecured Loan in IKF Home Finance 
Director's remuneration 
Director Commission Payable 
Share Capital (INR 10/- Paid up) 

Partlv paid up shares (Rs 10 Paid Up) • • 
Premium Received on Allotment of Partlv Paid uo Shares •• 
Partlv oald uo shares (Rs 5.00 Paid Uol in IKF Home f inance 
Unsecured Loan In IKF Home Finance 
Salary Paid 
Salary Paid 
Salary Paid 
Staff Loan 
Interest Received 
ESOP Compensation 

Relatives of key management personnel 
Share Capital (INR 10/- Paid up) 

Partly paid up shares (Rs 10 Paid Up) • • 

Mrs. O Vasantha Lakshmi 
Premium Received on Allotment of Partlv Paid uo Shares • • 

Partly paid up shares (Rs 5.00 Paid Up) In IKF Home Finance 

Director's remuneration In IKF Home Finance 
Unsecured l oan in IKF Home Finance 
Share Capital (INR 10/- Paid up) 

Partlv oald uo shares (Rs 10 Paid Up) • • 
Mr. V Raghu Ram Premium Raceivcd on Allotment of Partlv Paid uo Shares• • 

Parttv paid up shares (Rs S.00 Paid Up) in IKF Home finance 
Unsecured Loan in IKF Home Finance 

Mr. Sinha Satyanand Chundurl Share Capital (INll 10/- Paid up) 

M rs. Durga Rani Chundurl Share Capital (INR 10/ - Paid up) 

For tho FY 2021 

Transaction value 
Asat for the year Received During 

March 31, 2020 ended March 31, the year 
2021 

20.33 

70.00 

35.66 41.55 

50.00 
(344.85) 

0.64 

1586.79 • 

189.31 94.66 

1,184.92 592.46 

236.89 
0.74 118.45 

43.56 

30.00 

15.18 17.68 

38.50 
132.69 

17.35 8.67 

108.57 54.29 

21.71 
0.07 10.85 

50.00 

25.04 29.17 

213.13 

27.86 13.93 
174.39 87.20 
34.87 

0.11 17.43 

47.71 
6.92 

21.00 

0.56 

200.61 

26.23 13.11 

164.15 82.08 

32.82 
70.07 

0.09 16.41 

144.97 

18.95 9.48 

118.62 59.31 

23.72 
0.07 11.86 

11.77 
149.41 

For tho FY 2022 

Transaction value 
Paid During The As at for the year Received During Paid During tho As at 

year March 31, 2021 ended March 31, the year Year March 31, 2022 
2022 

21.60 

75.83 
35.66 41.55 51.02 41.55 51.02 

50.00 50.00 
344.85 

1587.56° 1974.32" 
283.97 66.61 

1,777.38 416.92 

236.89 236.89 
119.19 119.19 

48.00 
32.50 

15.18 17.68 21.71 17.68 21.71 

38.50 38.50 

132.69 164.81 
26.02 6.10 

162.86 38.20 
21.71 21.71 

10.92 10.92 
54.17 

25.04 29.17 35.82 64.99 

213.13 264.73 

41.79 9.80 

261.59 61.36 

34.87 34.87 

17.55 17.55 

51.05 
8.24 

23.10 
(10.00) 10.00 

0.04 

200.61 249.18 

39.34 9.23 

246.23 57.76 

32.82 32.82 

78.93 

16.41 16.41 
144.97 180.07 

28.43 6.67 

177.93 41.74 

23.72 23.72 

11.93 
11.77 ll",.1 Nil ~,---...., 11 .77 

149.41 ~ F/(,, '_... : (....,_ "\_\. 149.41 

t~ ' r~~ C, fP' ~~• { ~ I :1 ..-° I. I': ·,•.\(, . ! 
~ ,.. 

~,.,. , ,\.,Mti~l ,:..,f/ ' -1 . 
J.-.Ll, . . .. n~· 
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42 Related Party Disclosure (continued) 

b. Transaction w ith r elated _e_artles7 

Name of related party Nature of t ransaction 

Enternrlses slvntficantlv Influenced bv kev mana•ement oersonnel or their relatives 

IKF lnfratech Private limited Non Convertible Debentures 

Interest Paid 

Enterprises In which Directors are Interested 

SVR Finance & Leasing Private limited 
Trade Advance 

Interest Paid 

Enterprises having a significant Influence 

Share capital (INR 10/- Paid up) 

Share Premium 

India Business Excellence Fund•IIA Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs 100/· Each 

'Converted Into eaultv shares durin• the FY 2018-19) 
Share orcmium on orefercncc shares 

Vistra ITCL (India) limited (formerly Share Capital ( INR 10/- Paid up) 

Share premium on preference shares 

Particulars .. 
Short-term employee benefits 

Post-employment benefits# 

Long-term employee benefits 

Termination benefits 

Employee-share based payment 

Total compensation 

For the FY 2021 

Transaction value 

Asat for the year Received During Paid During The As at 
March 31, 2020 ended March 31, the year year Man:h 31, 2021 

2021 

63.20' -1 58.20· 

6.80 5.42 1.38 

50.00 (50.00) 

1,305.16 1,305.16 

780.40 780.40 

As at As at 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

432.37 408.10 

1.27 

432.37 409.37 

#As the provision for gratuity is made for the Company as a whole, the amount pertaining to the Key Management Personnel Is not specifically identified and hence Is not Included above. 

• The Increased/Decreased value Is relating to purchase of shares/debentures from the public. 

• • Partly paid shares are full paid and converted to fully patd equity shares . 

•• • Inter Corporate Deposits taken from IKF Home Finance ltd are at Interest of 8% tol0.00%. 

Notes: 

(i) Transaction values arc excluding taxes and duties. 

(ii) Name of the related parties and nature of thei r relationships where control exists have been disclosed irrespective of whether or not there have been transactions wlth the Company. In other cases, 

Transaction value 

for the year 

ended Man:h 31, 
2022 

0.76 

(iii} Related parties as defined under clause 9 of the Ind AS 24 'Related party disclosures' have been identified based on representations made by key managerial personnel and Information available with the 

Company. All above transactions arc In the ordinary course of business 

For the FY 2022 

Received During Paid During the 

the year Year 

58.20 

2.14 

(iv) The Company has not granted loans or advances to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly w ith any other person, that I: 

"~'"'" •-•~ "•••~• '"""~ ,_ ••~ • "'~" •••••• '" '" """"~ "'" '"'" """" " · m, ~ "'"" "· '"==--- ~ ' 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

1,305.16 

780.40 
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43 Value of Imports calculated on CIF basis 

The Company has not imported any goods therefore value of import on CIF basis ls Nil 

44 Expenditure in Foreign Currency 

Particulars Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 
Le12al and professional fees 0.90 
Total 0.90 

45 Earnings in Foreign Currency 

The Company does has not have any earnings In foreign currency 

46 Penalty 

No penalties w ere imposed by RBI and other regulators during the current year 

47 Draw down from Reserves: 

There has been no draw down from reserves during the year ended March 31, 2021 (previous year: Nil} 

48 Postponement of Revenue Recognition 

Refer note 2.5 Revenue from operations for the circumstances in which revenue recognition has been postponed pending uncertainty of rea lisat ion. 

49 Dues to micro, small and medium enterprises 

50 

There are no amounts that need to be disclosed in accordance with the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 {the 'MSME0') pertaining to micro 
or small enterprises. 

For the year ended March 31, 2022, no vendor/ supplier has intimated the Company about its status as micro or small enterprises or its registration with the appropriate 
authority under MSMED 

Disclosure on Resolution Framework- 2.0: Resolution of Covld-19 related stress of Individuals and Small Businesses in terms of RBI circular RBI/ 2021-22 / 31 DOR. 

STR. REC.11 / 21.04.048 / 2021-22 dated May 5, 2021: 

Exposure to accounts 
Exposure to accounts 

classified as Standard 
classified as Standard 

consequent to Of (A), aggregate debt that 
Of (A) amount written 

Of (A) amount paid by the 
consequent to 

Type of borrower implementation of slipped into NPA during 
off during the half-year 

borrowers during the half-
implementation of resolution 

resolution plan - Position as the half-year year 
plan - Position as at the end 

at the end of the previous 
of this half-year .. 

half-year (A) 
Personal Loans# 804.23 53.18 135.16 615.88 
Corporate Persons• 

of which MSMEs 

Others 83.21 84.71 
Total 887.44 53.18 135.16 700.59 
• As d efined in Section 3(7) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 
• • In case of loan in "'others• category, Customer has paid scheduled installment and interest amount of Rs. 1.5 lakhs was added to outstanding amount 

# pertains to Home loans and Loan Against Property of IKF Home Finance Limited 

Disclosures for Reserve Bank of India circular on Resolution Framework for Covid-19 relat ed stress dated August 6, 2020 are not applicable to the Company as none of 

the borrowers opted for the resolution plan. 
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51 Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC) 

All charges or satisfaction are registered w ith ROC within the statutory period for the financial years ended March 31, 2022. No charges or 
satisfactions are yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period. 

52 Compliance with number of layers of companies 

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on 
number of Layers) Rules, 2017 for the financial years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021. 

53 Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangement! 

The Board of Directors of the Company did not approve any scheme of Arrangements during the financial year ended March 31, 2022 and March 
31, 2021. 

54 Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium 

The Company, as part of its normal business, grants loans and advances, makes investment. These transactions are part of Company's normal 
non-banking finance business, which is conducted ensuring adherence to all regulatory requirements. 

Other than the transactions described above, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share 

premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entit ies, includ)ng foreign entities 
("Intermediaries") with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party 

identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Company has also not received any fund from any parties (Funding Party) 

with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on 

behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

55 Undisclosed income 

There are no transactions not recorded in the books of accounts. 

56 Title deeds of Immovable Properties not held in name of the Company 

The Company does not possess any immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are 

duly executed in favour of the lessee) whose title deeds are not held in the name of the Company during the financial year ended March 31, 
2022 and March 31, 2021. 

57 Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency 

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual currency during the financial years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 
2021. 

58 Details of Benami Property Held 

No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions 

(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder in the financial years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021. 

59 Wilful Defaulter 

The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial inst itution or other lender in the financial years ended March 
31, 2022 and March 31, 2021. 

60 Relationship with Struck off Companies 

The company does not have any transactions with companies whose names have been struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or 
section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 in the financial years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021. 

61 Investment in Associates and Structured Entities 

The Company does not have any Associates and Structured Entities 
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62 Impact due to COVID-19 

Consequent to the outbreak of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Indian government announced a lockdown in March 2020. Subsequently, the national 

lockdown was lifted by the government for certain activities in a phased manner outside specified containment zones, but regional 
lockdowns/restrictions continued to be implemented in areas with a significant number of Covid-19 cases. 

The impact of Covid-19, including changes in customer behaviour and pandemic fears, as well as restrictions on business and individual activities, 
has led to significant volatility in global and Indian financial markets and a significant decrease in global and local economic activities. The 
slowdown during the year led to a decrease in loan originations, and collection efficiency. The extent to which the Covid-19 pandemic, including 
the current "second wave• that has significantly increased the number of cases in India, will continue to impact the Company's operations and 

estimates related to Impairment of assets including loans to customers, will depend on future developments, including, among other things, any 
new information concerning the severity of the Covid-19 pandemic and any action to contain its spread or mitigate its impact whether 

government-mandated or elected by the Company. 

In accordance with Reserve Bank of India guidelines relating to Covid-19 Regulatory package dated March 27, 2020 April 17, 2020 and May 23, 
2020, the Company had offered moratorium on the payment of all instalments and/or interest, as applicable, fal ling due between March l, 2020 

to August 31, 2020 to all eligible borrowers. Further. the Company offered resolution plan to its customers pursuant to RBl's guideline 'Resolution 

framework for Covid-19 related stress' dated 6 August 2020. 

Estimates and associated assumptions applied in preparing these financial statements, especially for determining the impairment allowance for 
the Company's financial assets (Loans), are based on historical experience and other emerging/forward lookinB factors on account of the 

pandemic. The Company believes that the factors considered are reasonable under the current circumstances. The Company has used estimation 
of potential stress on probability of default and exposure at default due to Covid-19 situation along with the second wave of Covid-19 in 

developing the estimates and assumptions to assess the impairment loss allowance on Loans. Given the dynamic nature of the pandemic 
situation, these estimates are subject to uncertainty and maybe affected by severity and duration of the pandemic. In the event the impacts are 

more severe or prolonged than anticipated, this will have a corresponding impact on the carrying value of financial assets, the financial position 
and performance of the Company. 

The Company holds adequate impairment allowances as at March 31,2022 including the potent ial impact of Covid-19 based on the information 
available at this point in time. 

63 In accordance with the instructions in RBI circular number RBl/2021-22/17 dated April 7, 2021, all lending institutions shall refund/ adjust 
interest on interest' to all borrowers including those who have availed working capital facilities during the moratorium period. irrespective of 

whether moratorium had been fully or partially availed or not availed. Pursuant to these instructions, the Indian Banks' Association (IBA) in 
consultation with other industry participants / bodies published the methodology for calculation of the amount of such 'interest on 

interest/compound interest/penal interest'. Accordingly, the Company has estimated Rs. 160.55 lakhs and made provision for refund/ adjustment 
as at March 31, 2021. 

64 Note on Code on Social Security, 2020 

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which subsumes the Provident Fund and the Gratuity Act and rules 

thereunder. The Ministry of Labour and Employment has also released draft rules thereunder on November 13, 2020 and has invited suggestions 
from stakeholders which are under active consideration by the Ministry. The Company will evaluate the rules, assess the impact. if any and 

account for the same once the rules are notified and become effective 

65 Previous year's information have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with current year's classification/disclosure. 

For S G CO & Co. LLP 

umber : 112081W/W100184 

Partner 

Membership No.044739 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 30-May-22 

Place: Vijayawada 

Date: 30-May-22 
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Additional informat ion as required by paragraph 2 of t he general instructions for preparation of Consolidated Financial statements to schedule Ill to the Com_eanie_s_Act, 2013. 

Name of the entity In the Group 

l 
Parent 

IKF Finance limited 

Subsidiaries 

Indian 

IKF Home Finance limited 

Foreign 

Minority Interest in all subsidiaries 

lntcr•company eliminations and consolidation 

adjustments 

Associates (Investment as per the equity method) 

Indian 

Foreign 

Joint Ventures (as per proportionate consolidation/ 

investment as per the equity method) 

Indian 

Foreign 

Total 

ForS G CO & Co. LLP 

Ch.:1rtcrcd Accountants 

ICAI Firm rcclstr.:1l,pn number: 112081W/W100184 

Partner 

Membership No.044739 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 30-May-22 

Net Asset, I.e., total assets 

minus total liabilities 

As%of 

Consolidated 
Amount 

(Rs. in lakhs) 
net assets 

2 3 

93.07% 38,736.78 

S.S5% 2,310.03 

Not Applicable Not Applicable 

1.38% 574.79 

Not Applicable Not Applicable 

Not Applicable Not Applicable 

Not Applicable Not Applicable 

Not Applicable Not Applicable 

100.00% 41,621.59 

Share In profit or loss 
Share In other comprehensive 

income 

As % of 

Consolidated 

profit o r loss 

4 

78.83% 

18.09% 

Not Applicable 

1.47% 

1.61% 

Not Applicable 

Not Applicable 

Not Applicable 

Not Applicable 

100.00% 

As%of 

consolidated 
Amount 

(Rs. in lakhs) 
other 

comprehensive 

income 

s 6 

4,030.43 86.46% 

925.18 13.54% 

Not Applicable Not Applicable 

75.24 

82.14 

Not Applicable Not Applicable 

Not Applicable Not Applicable 

Not Applicable Not Applicable 

Not Applicable Not Applicable 

5,112.99 100.00% 

IKF Flnanc« 

CIN: U) /1 

ltt cd 

1991PLC012736 

Amount 

(Rs. In lakhs) 

7 

8.28 

1.30 

Not Applicable 

Not Applicable 

Not Applicable 

Not Applicable 

Not Applicable 

9.58 

_ v7-, ''"·-· 
Chairman 

..... ~~; 

Place: Vijayawada 

Date· 30-May-22 

Share In total compr<?henslve 

Income 

As%oftotal 
Amount 

comprehensive 
(Rs. in lakhs) 

income 

8 9 

78.84% 4,038.71 

18.09% 926.48 

Not Applicable Not Applicable 

1.47% 75.24 

1.60% 82.14 

Not Applicable Not Applicable 

Not Applicable Not Applicable 

Not Applicable Not Applicable 

Not Applicable Not Applicable 

100.00% 5,122.56 

-~ 


